Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report

of the

Cape May County Schools
For Special Services

Board of Education
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)

Cape May County, New Jersey

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024
Prepared by the Finance Department






TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION:

Letter of Transmittal
Organizational Chart
Roster of Officials
Consultants and Advisors

FINANCIAL SECTION:
Independent Auditor's Report

Required Supplementary Information - Part |
Management Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements
A District-Wide Financial Statements

A-1 Statement of Net Position
A-2  Statement of Activities

B Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds:
B-1 Balance Sheet
B-2  Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
B-3  Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the
Statement of Activities

Proprietary Funds:
B-4  Statement of Net Position
B-5 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Position
B-6  Statement of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Funds:
B-7  Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

B-8  Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Notes to the Financial Statements

Page

1-3

o

7-9

10-18

19
20

21

22

23

24

25-26

27-28

N/A

N/A

29-54



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Required Supplementary Information - Part Il

Budgetary Comparison Schedules
C-1  Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
C-2  Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Special Revenue Fund

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
C-3  Budget to GAAP Reconciliation

Required Supplementary Information - Part lli

L-1 Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (PERS)
L-2  Schedule of District Contributions (PERS)
L-3  Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (TPAF)

M-1  Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability
Other Supplementary Information

Special Revenue Fund:
E-1  Combining Schedule of Revenues and Expenditures -
Special Revenue Fund - Budgetary Basis
E-2  Preschool Education Aid Schedule of Expenditures - Budgetary Basis

Capital Projects Fund:
F-1 Summary Schedule of Project Expenditures
F-2 ~ Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
F-2a  Schedules of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project
Status - Budgetary Basis

Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds:
G-1  Combining Statement of Net Position
G-2 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Position
G-3  Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Internal Service Fund:
G-4  Combining Statement of Net Assets
G-5 Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Net Assets
G-6  Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Page

55-64
65

66

67
68
69

70

71-72

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
N/A



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
H Fiduciary Funds:
H-1  Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets N/A
H-2  Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets N/A
H-3  Student Activity Agency Fund Schedule of Receipts and
Disbursements N/A
H-4  Payroll Agency Fund Schedule of Receipts and
Disbursements N/A
I Long-Term Debt:
1-1 Schedule of Serial Bonds N/A
-2 Schedule of Obligations under Capital Leases N/A
1-3 Debt Service Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule N/A
-4 Schedule of Obligations Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements 73
STATISTICAL SECTION: (Unaudited)
Financial Trends
J-1 Net Assets by Component 74
J-2 Changes in Net Position 75-76
J-3 Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 77
J-4 Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 78
J-5 General Fund Other Local Revenue by Source 79
Revenue Capacity
J-6 Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property N/A
J-7 Direct and Overalpping Property Tax Rates N/A
J-8 Principal Property Taxpayers N/A
J-9 Property Tax Levies and Collections N/A
Debt Capacity
J-10 Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type N/A
J-11 Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding N/A
J-12 Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt N/A
J-13 Legal Debt Margin N/A
Demographic and Economic Data
J-14 Demographic and Economic Statistics 80
J-15 Principal Employers N/A
Operating Information
J-16 Full-Time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program 81
J-17 Operating Statistics 82
J-18 School Building Information 83
J-19 Schedule of Required Maintenance Expenditures
by School Facility 84

J-20 Insurance Schedule 85-86



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION:

K-1

K-2

K-3
K-4
K-5
K-6
K-7

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material
Effect on Each Major Program and Internal Control over Compliance in
Accordance with Uniform Guidance and New Jersey
OMB Circular 15-08

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, Schedule A

Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance, Schedule B

Notes to the Schedules of Awards and Financial Assistance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Page

87-88

89-91
92
93

94-96

97-98
99



Introductory Section



{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



Cape May County
SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
4 Moore Road, DN 704, Cape May Court House, NJ 08210 (609) 465-2720 Fax (609) 465-8220

Carleena L. Supp Jamie P. Moscony Kathleen M. Allen
Assistant Superintendent Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator
Jonathan Price Valerie Bowers
Related Services Director OA/CMCHS Director

October 18, 2024

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education

Cape May County Special Services School
Cape May Court House, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the Cape May County Special Services School for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the
Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report is accurate in
all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an
understanding of the District’s financial activities have been included.

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial, Statistical
and Single Audit. The Introductory Section includes this transmittal letter, the District’'s organizational chart
and a list of principal officials. The Financial Section includes the basic financial statements, schedules and
the Management Discussion and Analysis as well as the auditor’s report thereon. The Statistical Section
includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The
District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act
of 1984 and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform Guidance, and the New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments. Information
related to this single audit, including the auditor’s report on the internal control structure and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, is included in the single audit section of
this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Board of Education of the Cape May County Special
Services School is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). All funds of the District are included in this report. The Cape May County Special
Services Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District’s reporting entity.

The District provides Preschool Disabled, Emotional Regulation Impairment, Multiple Disabilities, and Autism
programs and related services for moderately and severely disabled youth of Cape May County. Additionally,
students are received from many surrounding counties in Southern New Jersey.

www.cmcespecialservices.org
Located at 148 Crest Haven Road, Cape May Court House, New Jersey 08210
We are an equal opportunity employer



2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The 2023-2024 school year ended with enrollment up over the
prior year and up over the number of students budgeted. The original budget was based on 240 students while
the average daily enroliment for the year was 249 students. Tuition adjustments for the 2022-2023 school year
have been calculated resulting in a net due to the sending districts of approximately $1,370,000. We continue
to closely monitor enroliment in light of the overall decline in year-round population in the County as well as
the effects of the “least restrictive environment” mandate. We remain steadfast in our philosophy that we offer
the optimum environment for a segment of the disabled youth of our County and surrounding area in a cost-
effective manner.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: The final incentive was received by the District for our BPU/Clean Energy Pay for
Performance project. This incentive will be applied to our next major infrastructure improvement; the
replacement of univents in the Bailey wing. This project will be completed through a Community Development
Block grant awarded by Cape May County in the amount of $1,074,239. In addition, the replacement of our
exterior maintenance facility with a new pole barn is wrapping up and will be available for use in the 24/25
school year.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from
loss, theft or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that
these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management. The District is responsible for ensuring that an adequate internal
control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those
programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District's Management.
As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made periodically to determine the adequacy
of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs,
as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary
controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the annual appropriated budget approved by the Board of School Estimate of the County. Annual appropriated
budgets are adopted for the general fund and the special revenue fund. The final budget amount as amended
for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section. An encumbrance accounting system is used to record
outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled
or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be
reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance as of June 30, 2024.

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, as promulgated by the GASB. The accounting system of
the District is organized on the basis of entity-wide governmental and business type activities as well as various
governmental, enterprise and fiduciary funds. These funds are explained in the "Notes to the Financial
Statements," Note 1.




7. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as
detailed in "Notes to Financial Statements," Note 3. The District has adopted a cash management plan which
requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental
Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires
governmental units to deposit funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are
secured in accordance with the Act.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general
liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents,
and fidelity bonds.

9. OTHER INFORMATION:

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or
registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Ford, Scott & Associates L.L.C., CPAs, was selected
by the Board of Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also
was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984 as revised and the related Budget
Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB Circular Letter 15-08. The auditor's report on the basic financial
statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of
this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section
of this report.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Board of Education of the Cape May County
Special Services School for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the
school district and thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial
operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated
services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Rathteen . Hlen

Kathleen M. Allen
School Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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FORD - SCOTT

& ASSOCIATES, L.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1535 HAVEN AVENUE « OCEAN CITY, NJ - 08226
PHONE 609.399.6333 < FAX 609.399.3710
www.ford-scott.com

Independent Auditor’s Report

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education

Cape May County Schools for Special Services
(a component unit of the County of Cape May)
County of Cape May

Cape May Court House, New Jersey

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cape May County Schools
for Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May), in the County of Cape May, New
Jersey, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a
component unit of the County of Cape May), as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements prescribed by the Office
of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements
section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Cape May County Schools for Special
Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May) and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Cape May County Schools for



Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May)’s ability to continue as a going concern for
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may
raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements, as a whole, are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing
Standards and audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education,
State of New Jersey will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from an error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements
prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, we:

+ exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

+ Obtain an understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

+ Conclude whether in our judgement there are conditions or events considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charge with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control — related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Required
Supplementary Information identified in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any



assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape
May)’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and
schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance) and the schedule of state financial assistance as required by NJ OMB 15-08 and the
introductory and statistical sections are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
and individual non-major fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required
by the Uniform Guidance, and the schedule of state financial assistance as required by NJ OMB 15-08 is
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report. The other information comprises of the introductory and statistical sections and have not been
subject to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly,
we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 18,
2024 on our consideration of the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the
County of Cape May)’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Cape May County Schools for Special
Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May)’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Ford, Scott & ssociates, L.L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leow P. (ootello

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 767

October 18, 2024
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Cape May County Schools for Special Services’ financial performance
provides an overall review of the School District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2024. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the School District's financial performance as
a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements and notes to enhance their
understanding of the School District's financial performance.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2024 are as follows:

> In total, net position increased by $622,650.15, as compared to an increase of $2,918,895.82 for
the 2023 fiscal year. This change is primarily attributed to an overall increase in expenses,
excluding capital outlay, specifically special education instruction and plant operations and
maintenance. The net position also reflects GASB 68 regarding pension liabilities.

» General revenues accounted for $4,396,392.88 in revenue or 16.60% percent of all revenues.
Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and operating grants and
contributions accounted for $22,084,053.04 or 83.36% percent of total revenues of
$26,492,191.58.

> Total assets of governmental activities decreased by $351,487.68 as cash and cash equivalents
decreased by $152,343.62, and capital assets increased by $217,695.45 due to the construction
of a pole barn, as well as the acquisition of gym wall padding, and refinishing the outdoor
basketball court.

» The School District had $25,843,447.89 in expenses; $22,084,053.04 of these expenses were
offset by program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues
(primarily the county appropriation) of $1,435,400.00 were adequate to provide for these
programs.

» Among governmental funds, the General Fund had $16,369,119.34 in revenues and other
financing sources and $16,982,363.11 in expenditures and other financing uses. The General
Fund's fund balance decreased $113,243.77 over 2023. This change was the result of a
decrease in tuition revenue as well as increases in Special Education Services and Employee
Benefits expense.

Using this Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so the reader can understand Cape May County Schools for Special Services
as a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly
detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
whole School District, presenting both an aggregate view of the School District's finances and a longer-
term view of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental
funds, these statements tell how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for
future spending. The fund financial statements also look at the School District's most significant funds
with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column. In the case of the Cape May County
Schools for Special Services, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.

10



CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities

While this document contains the large number of funds used by the School District to provide programs
and activities, the view of the School District, as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the
question, "How did we do financially during 2024?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities answer this question.

These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector businesses. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the
current year's revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District's net position and changes in net position. This change is
important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, the financial position of the
School district has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors,
some financial and some not. Non-financial factors include the County’s property tax base, current laws in
New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other
factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

» Governmental Activities - All of the School District's programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil
transportation and extracurricular activities.

» Business-Type Activity - This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service, Shared Services
Itinerant, Shared Service Transportation, Community Use and Extended School Year enterprise
funds along with several “non-major” enterprise funds are reported as a business activity.

Reporting the School District's Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the School District's funds. The School District
uses many funds to account for a multitude of financial transactions. The School District's governmental
funds are the General Fund and Special Revenue Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. These
funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash
and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements
provide a detailed short-term view of the School district's general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader determine whether there are more
or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise funds use the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, these
statements are essentially the same.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the district-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found in this
report as shown in the table of contents.

The School District as a Whole

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Net
position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.

The District's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of
activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the
depreciation of capital assets.

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District's net assets for 2024 and 2023.

Table 1
Net Position
2024 2023
Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 12,911,553.81 13,596,482.52
Capital Assets 4,990,968.97 4,692,096.22

Total Assets 17,902,522.78 18,288,578.74

Deferred Outflows of Resources 647,175.00 682,432.00
Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities 6,236,339.97 6,438,793.40

Other Liabilities 385,600.96 425,237.82

Total Liabilities 6,621,940.93 6,864,031.22

Deferred Inflows of Resources 986,041.00 1,810,083.00
Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,990,968.97 4,692,096.22

Restricted 4,479,391.80 3,675,391.80

Unrestricted 1,471,355.08 1,929,408.50

Total Net Position $ 10,941,715.85 10,296,896.52

The District's combined net position was $10,941,715.85 on June 30, 2024. This was an increase of 6.26
percent from the prior year. The increase was caused by an increase in capital assets as well as a
decrease in deferred inflows of resources related to pensions. Table 2 shows changes in net position for
fiscal year 2024.
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

UNAUDITED
Table 2
Changes in Net Position
2024 2023

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 19,087,704.61 19,512,398.93

Operating Grants and Contributions 2,996,348.43 1,244,844.24
General Revenues:

County Appropriation 4,135,400.00 4,135,400.00

Other 272,554.83 225,816.92

Total Revenues

Program Expenses

26,492,007.87

25,118,460.09

Instruction 7,801,837.75 5,908,304.12
Support Services:

Pupils and Instructional Staff 3,356,044.39 2,725,247.82

General Administration, School Administration,

Business Operations and Maintenance of Facilities 4,786,770.92 3,686,515.85
Food Service 222,337.93 209,612.76
Shared Services 8,757,291.58 8,125,388.58
Other Enterprise Funds 919,165.31 685,524.28
Other Sources (Uses) 3,739.65 33,357.60
Total Expenses 25,847,187.53 21,373,951.01
Change in Net Position 644,820.34 3,744,509.08

{This space is intentionally left blank}
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

UNAUDITED

Governmental Activities

Charges for services (mostly tuition from sending districts) made up 55.25 percent of revenues for
governmental activities for the Cape May County Schools for Special Services for fiscal year 2024 and
64.62 percent of revenues for fiscal 2023. Tuition received from sending districts and nonresident fees
decreased by $971,058.31, which is a 9.86% decrease from the prior year. The District's total revenues
were $16,067,119.51 for the year ended June 30, 2024. The county appropriation accounted for 25.74
percent of revenue.

2024 2023

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
County Appropriation $ 4,135,400.00 25.74% 4,135,400.00 27.14%
Unrestricted Federal Aid 51,585.96 0.32% 149,605.00 0.98%
Charges for Services 8,876,924.70 55.25% 9,847,983.01 64.62%
Operating Grants and Contributions 2,793,985.64 17.39% 1,036,020.53 6.80%
Other 209,223.21 1.30% 70,950.09 0.47%
Totals $ 16,067,119.51 100.00% 15,239,958.63 100.00%

The total cost of all program and services was $15,944,653.07. Instruction comprises 48.93 percent of
District expenses and Related Services another 51.07%.

2024 2023
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
Instruction $ 7,801,837.75 48.93% 5,908,304.12 47.96%
Undistributed Expenses 8,142,815.32 51.07% 6,411,763.68 52.04%
Capital Outlay 0.00% - 0.00%
Totals $ 15,944,653.07 100.00% 12,320,067.80 100.00%

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District's business-type activities (food service program, two shared services programs
and other enterprise funds) were comprised of charges for the various services and federal and state
reimbursements.

e Food service revenue exceeded expenditures, both operating and non-operating by $2,351.53.
This amount is a slight increase over the prior year primarily due an increase in daily sales
revenue which was partially offset by an increase in employee salaries.

e Charges for services in the food service fund represent $21,285.81 of total revenue compared to

$9,615.18 in the prior year. This represents amounts paid by patrons for daily food service and
amount received from catering and special functions.
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

e Federal and state reimbursement for meals, including payments for free and reduced lunches and
breakfast, and donated commodities was $202,362.79, compared to $208,823.71 in the prior
year. This decrease is due to all eligible meals being reimbursed at the lower National School
Lunch program rate during the 2023 fiscal year.

e Shared Services revenues for Itinerant Services exceeded expenditures by $438,822.87. Shared
Services revenue for Transportation Services exceeded expenditures by $88,708.68.

e Charges for services in the Shared Service Fund for Itinerant Services represent $5,325,538.98
of revenue. This represents amounts paid by users for itinerant services of other local school
districts. Charges for services in the Shared Service Fund for Transportation Services represent
$3,441,389.14 of revenue. This represents amounts paid by users for transportation services
provided by the district.

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants
offsetting those services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The net
cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the County taxpayers and sending districts by each of
these functions.

Table 3
Costs of Services
Total Cost of

Total Cost of Net Cost/(Profit) of

Net Cost/(Profit) of

Services 2024 Services 2024 Services 2023 Services 2023

Instruction $ 7,801,837.75 2,190,187.00 5,908,304.12 4,099,374.43
Support Services:

Pupils and Instructional Staff 3,356,044.40 (2,914,283.25) 2,725,247.82 (2,673,267.55)

General Administration, School

Administration, Business

Operations 1,748,111.09 (1,305,606.54) 1,369,887.52 (1,110,368.61)

Operation and Maintenance

of Facilities 3,038,659.83 (2,244,039.94) 2,316,628.34 (1,858,395.53)

Capital Outlay - - 106,593.00
Total Expenses $ 15,944,653.07 (4,273,742.73) 12,320,067.80 (1,436,064.26)

The net cost of services in 2024 is comparable to 2023.

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils and the interaction
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Pupils and Instructional Staff include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content and
process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration, and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings, and equipment in
an effective working condition.
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

The School District's Funds

All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue and capital projects fund presented in the
fund-based statements) are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Total revenues
and other financing sources amounted to $17,008,343.22 compared to $17,280,745.63 in 2023. The
change is directly related to a decrease in tuition charges and non-resident fees offset by a transfer from
the ltinerant Services Enterprise Fund. Expenditures and other financing uses were $17,112,744.34
compared to $15,789,788.44 in 2023. The increase was due primarily to increases in instruction costs
and employee benefits. The net increase in fund balance for the year was directly related to an increase
in tuition revenue.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report,
the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules
present a summary of the revenues of the governmental funds for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024,
and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues.

Table 4
Summary of Revenues — Governmental Funds

Increase Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase

Revenue Amount Total from 2023 (Decrease)

Local Sources $ 13,303,493.14 78.22% (856,201.39) -6.05%

State Sources 3,110,478.41 18.29% 312,930.31 11.19%

Federal Sources 94,187.96 0.55% (229,315.04) -70.88%
Other Financing

Sources (Uses) 500,183.71 2.94% 500,183.71 0.00%

Total $ 17,008,343.22 100.00% (272,402.41) -1.90%

The decrease in local revenues of $856,201.39 is due to a decrease in tuition revenue.

State aid decreased by $312,930.31 primarily related to an increase in on-behalf TPAF pension
contributions-GASB 75

Federal aid decreased by $229,315.04 primarily due to a decrease in eligible students/services provided
through the SEMI program, as well as the completion of the American Rescue Plan (ARP) programs.

{This space intentionally left blank}
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

The following schedule represents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund and capital outlay
expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, and the percentage of increases and decreases in
relation to prior year amounts.

Table 5
Summary of Expenditures — Governmental Funds
Increase Percent of
Percent (Decrease) Increase

Expenditures Amount of Total from 2023 (Decrease)

Current Expense:
Instruction $ 5,156,590.37 30.13% 355,770.17 7.41%

Undistributed

Expenditures 11,485,046.03 67.11% 843,028.15 7.92%
Capital Outlay 471,107.94 2.75% 123,162.57 35.40%
Total $ 17,112,744.34 100.00% 1,321,960.89 8.56%

Instruction expense increased specifically in the areas of multiple disabilities and preschool disabilities
salaries. Undistributed expenditures increased and were mostly attributable to an increase in health
benefits and on-behalf contributions. Capital outlay costs increases due to the construction of a pole barn
during the 2024 fiscal year.
General Fund Budgeting Highlights
The School District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund.
Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. Revisions in
the budget were made to recognize revenues that were not anticipated and to prevent over-expenditures
in specific line item accounts. Several of these revisions bear notation:

> Actual tuition revenue was higher than the budgeted amount by $334,282.00.

> Interest earned on deposits was higher than the budgeted amount by $125,462.52.

» Other Salaries for Autism were $52,748.93 under budget.

> Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Service costs were $46,076.22 under budget.

> Net health benefits costs were $68,831.98 under budget.

{This space intentionally left blank}
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
UNAUDITED

Capital Assets
At the end of the fiscal year 2024, the School District had $4,990,968.97 invested in land and building
improvements, furniture and equipment, and vehicles. Table 6 shows fiscal year 2024 balances as

compared to 2023.

Table 6
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30

Governmental Activities:

2024 2023

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Construction in Progress $ 362,532.15 -
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Land & Building Improvements 1,588,919.00 1,593,115.93

Infrastructure 133,515.54 135,922.00

Machinery and Equipment 2,233,048.88 2,367,090.56

Licensed Vehicles 11,392.45 15,584.08

Total Capital Assets, Net 4,329,408.02 4,111,712.57
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Equipment 661,560.95 580,381.57

$ 4,990,968.97 4,692,094.14

Overall capital assets increased $298,874.83 from fiscal year 2023 to fiscal year 2024. For more detailed
information, please refer to the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

For the Future

The Cape May County Schools for Special Services is in good financial condition presently. The School
District is proud of its Board of Chosen Commissioner’s support of the school.

In conclusion, the Cape May County Schools for Special Services has committed itself to financial
excellence for many years. The School District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to meet
the challenge of the future.

Contacting the School District's Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, investors, and creditors with a general overview
of the School District's finances and to show the School District's accountability for the money it receives.
If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Kathleen M. Allen, Cape
May County Schools for Special Services, Business Administrator/Board Secretary at the Board Offices, 4
Moore Road, DN 704, Cape May Court House, NJ 08210.
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2024

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,098,018.33 5,107,687.10 10,205,705.43
Receivables, Net 130,880.73 1,698,414.79 1,829,295.52
Restricted Assets:

Capital Reserve Account 16,866.54 - 16,866.54
Inventory - 21,296.76 21,296.76
Right to Use Asset 838,389.56 838,389.56
Capital Assets:

Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 4,329,408.02 661,560.95 4,990,968.97

Total Assets 10,413,563.18 7,488,959.60 17,902,522.78
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 647,175.00 647,175.00
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 647,175.00 - 647,175.00
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable 66,684.56 2,536.64 69,221.20
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 6,225.00 6,225.00
Payable to Other Governments 11.00 - 11.00
Unearned Revenue 166,888.66 166,888.66
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 70,176.72 70,176.72
Unemployment compensation claims payable 67,091.97 67,091.97
Advances from Students - 1,614.41 1,614.41
Deposits Payable - 4,372.00 4,372.00
Noncurrent Liabilities

Due within One Year 421,365.29 421,365.29

Due Beyond One Year 681,294.73 40,301.95 721,596.68

Net Pension Liability 5,093,378.00 5,093,378.00

Total Liabilities 6,573,115.93 48,825.00 6,621,940.93
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 986,041.00 986,041.00
NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 4,329,408.02 661,560.95 4,990,968.97
Restricted for:

Capital Projects 2,081,820.90 - 2,081,820.90

Other Purposes 2,397,570.90 - 2,397,570.90
Unrestricted (Deficit) (5,307,218.57) 6,778,573.65 1,471,355.08
Total Net Position 3,501,581.25 7,440,134.60 10,941,715.85

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet
June 30, 2024

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,010,000.34 21,171.49 5,031,171.83
Receivables from Other Governments 104,004.92 5,834.00 109,838.92
Other Accounts Receivable 21,041.81 21,041.81
Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents 16,866.54 16,866.54
Total Assets 5,114,005.26 64,913.84 5,178,919.10
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 66,684.56 - 66,684.56
Payable to Other Governments 11.00 11.00
Payroll deductions and withholdings payable 70,176.72 70,176.72
Unemployment compensation claims payable 67,091.97 67,091.97
Accrued Salaries and Benefits 6,225.00 6,225.00
Unearned Revenue 118,841.36 48,047.30 166,888.66
Total Liabilities 329,030.61 48,047.30 377,077.91
Fund Balances:
Restricted Fund Balance:
Maintenance Reserve 921,201.00 921,201.00
Capital Reserve 2,081,820.90 2,081,820.90
Assigned to:
Designated by BOE for Subsequent
Years Expenditures 400,000.00 400,000.00
Encumbrances 31,603.73 31,603.73
Unemployment 315,750.00 315,750.00
Unassigned
General Fund 1,034,599.02 1,034,599.02
Special Revenue Fund 16,866.54 16,866.54
Total Fund Balances 4,784,974.65 16,866.54 4,801,841.19
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 5,114,005.26 64,913.84
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
The cost of the assets is $6,145,352.95 and the
accumulated depreciation is $1,815,944.93. 4,329,408.02
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore not reported as liabilities in the funds (264,270.46)
Pension Liabilities Net of Deferred Outflows & Inflows (5,432,244.00)
Internal service funds are used by management to charge
costs of certain activities, such as extra services, to
individual funds or other governmental entities. The net
revenue (expense) of internal service funds is reported
with governmental activities. (See B-5) 66,846.50
Net position of governmental activities 3,501,581.25

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement



B-2
CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
Governmental Funds
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Special Total
General Revenue Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Local Sources:
County Line ltem Appropriation $ 4,135,400.00 - 4,135,400.00
Tuition Charges 8,304,993.00 8,304,993.00
Non-Resident Fees 571,931.70 571,931.70
Miscellaneous 200,380.56 90,787.88 291,168.44
Total Local Sources 13,212,705.26 90,787.88 13,303,493.14
State Sources 3,104,644.41 5,834.00 3,110,478.41
Federal Sources 51,585.96 42,602.00 94,187.96
Total Revenues 16,368,935.63 139,223.88 16,508,159.51
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Special Education Instruction 4,540,032.07 120,267.48 4,660,299.55
Other Instruction 496,290.82 496,290.82
Support Services:
Student & Instruction Related Serv. 2,198,185.60 10,113.75 2,208,299.35
School Administrative Services 421,677.96 421,677.96
Other Administrative Services 727,844.23 727,844.23
Plant Operation and Maintenance 1,963,754.15 1,963,754.15
Employee Benefits 6,163,470.34 6,163,470.34
Capital Outlay 471,107.94 - 471,107.94
Total Expenditures 16,982,363.11 130,381.23 17,112,744.34
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (613,427.48) 8,842.65 (604,584.83)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 500,000.00 500,000.00
Cancellation of Prior Year Liabilities 183.71 183.71
Transfers out - -
Cancellation of Prior Year Revenue - -
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 500,183.71 - 500,183.71
Net Changes in Fund Balance (113,243.77) 8,842.65 (104,401.12)
Fund Balance - July 1 $4,898,218.42 8,023.89 4,906,242.31
Fund Balance - June 30 $ 4,784,974.65 16,866.54 4,801,841.19

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES

(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Total Net Change in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount depreciation exceeded capital outlays
for the period.
Depreciation expense
Capital Outlays

Governmental funds report district pension contributions as expenditures.
However in the Statement of Activities, the cost of pension benefits earned
net of of employee contributions is reported as pension expense.

District pension contributions - PERS
Cost of benefits earned net of employee contributions

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses,

e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the
amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds,
however, expenditures for these items are reported in the amount
of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the
reconciliation (-); when the paid amount exceeds the earned
amount, the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

(253,412.49)

471,107.94

469,985.00

155,436.00

B-3

$  (104,401.12)

217,695.45

625,421.00

(116,065.18)

$  622,650.15

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The District is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational
institution. The Board consists of appointed officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of the District.
A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.

The financial statements of the Board of Education (Board) of Cape May County Schools for Special
Services (District) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting
and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the Board’s accounting policies are described
below.

A. Reporting Entity

The Cape May County Schools for Special Services is a Type | District located in the County of Cape
May, State of New Jersey. As a Type | District, the School District functions independently through a
Board of Education. The Board is comprised of six members appointed to three-year terms, and the
County Superintendent of Schools and the County Mental Health Chairperson as ex-officio members.
The operations of the District include early intervention (birth-3), pre-school handicapped (ages 3-5),
Ocean Academy Elementary School (ages 5-10), individuals eligible for day training (ages 4-21), George
E. Bailey Middle School (ages 11-14), the Alternative High School (ages 14-21), the Woodbine
Developmental Center, the Alternative Education Program and the Department of Human Services
Program.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section
2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is
whether:

the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

the District holds the corporate powers of the organization

the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

the District is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the District
there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the District

VVYVYVYVYVYVY

The following organizations are considered component units; however, the School District has determined
that they are not significant and, therefore, have not been included in the basic financial statements;

Cape May County Special Services Education Foundation
148 Crest Haven Road
Cape May Court House, N.J. 08210

Requests for information should be addressed to the organization listed above.

B. Basic Financial Statements — Government-Wide Statements

The District’'s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the District as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the District’'s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. The District’s
general and special revenue activities are classified as governmental activities. The District’s proprietary
funds are classified as business-type activities.

In the governmental-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type activities
columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations. The District’s net position are reported in three parts-invested in capital assets, net
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
(CONTINUED)

of related debt; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The District first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the District's
functions and business-type activities (food service). The functions are also supported by general
government revenues (property taxes, tuition, certain intergovernmental revenues, etc.). The Statement
of Activities reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and
capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function (regular instruction,
vocational programs, student & instruction related services, etc.) or a business-type activity. Operating
grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital
grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue (property
taxes, interest income, etc.).

a. The District does allocate indirect costs such as depreciation expense, compensated absences,
On-behalf TPAF Pension Contributions, and Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the District as an entity and the change in the
District’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities. Fiduciary funds are not included in the
government-wide statements.

C. Basic Financial Statements — Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements.
Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are
reported by generic classification within the financial statements.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-
type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASB
Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the
determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial
statements. The State of New Jersey Department of Education has mandated that all New Jersey School
Districts must report all governmental funds as major, regardless of the fund meeting the GASB definition
of a major fund. However, the criteria are applied to proprietary funds.

The following fund types are used by the District:

Governmental Funds

The District reports the following governmental funds:

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and balances of financial resources)
rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the District.

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The
District's Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund, Payroll Agency, and Net Payroll accounts
are also accounted for in the General Fund.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the proceeds of
specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The
special revenue fund is specifically used to account for federal and state grant monies that have
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been allocated to the District. The District's Student Activities Fund is also accounted for in the
Special Revenue Fund.

Fund Balances — Governmental Funds

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following classifications of fund
balance:

o Nonspendable — includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either not
spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

o Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of other
governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

o Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes. Committed
fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board of Education, the
District’s highest level of decision making authority. Commitments may be modified or
rescinded only through resolutions approved by the Board of Education.

o Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific purpose, but do
not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund balance. Under the District’s policy,
amounts may be assigned by the Business Administrator.

o Unassigned — includes amounts that have not been assigned to other funds or restricted,
committed or assigned to a specific purpose within the General Fund. The District reports
all amounts that meet the unrestricted General Fund Balance Policy described below as
unassigned:

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. When
an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is
available, the District considers restricted funds to have been spent first. When an expenditure is
incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District
considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds, and
finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net
position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are
those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the proprietary funds of
the District:

Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely
secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of
providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) establishes
fees and charges based on a pricing policy designated to recover similar costs.

Internal Service Fund is treated as governmental fund for the entity-wide financial reporting.
This fund is used to account for extra services provided that are over the contractual amounts.

The District reports the following proprietary fund:

Enterprise Funds - Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business operations — where the intent of the District is
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that the costs of providing goods or services be financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

The District's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the following;

A Food Service Fund, which accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to the
District’s cafeteria operations.

An ltinerant Shared Services Fund, which accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to the itinerant services provided to other districts in the state.

A Transportation Shared Services Fund, which accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to the transportation services provided to other districts in the state.

A Day Care/Community Use of Facilities Fund, which accounts for all revenues and
expenses pertaining to the day care operations in the district provided to families in the
community and which accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to Community
Pool operations.

A Shop Rite Fund, which accounts for all revenue and expenses pertaining to the sale of
goods from a Shop Rite store maintained in the school.

An Extended School Year Fund, which accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to the extended school year program operated over the summer months.

A Business Office Services Fund, which accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to the outsourcing of business office functions to other local education
associations.

Internal Service Fund - Internal Service funds are used to charge costs for certain activities to
individual funds or other governmental entities. The District’s internal service fund is comprised
of charges for additional related services over contractual amounts.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and therefore are
not available to support District programs. The reporting focus is on net position and changes in net
position, and is reported using accounting principles similar to proprietary funds.

The District’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fiduciary fund financial statements by type (pension,
private purpose and agency). Since by definition these assets are being held for the benefit of a third
party (other local governments, private parties, pension participants, etc.), and cannot be used to address
activities or obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide
statements.

All fund internal activity is eliminated when carried to the Government-wide statements.

D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made
regardless of the measurement focus applied.
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1. Accrual:

Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and the
proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual:

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e.,
both measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 days
after year end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting
when the related liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on
general obligation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

E. Financial Statement Amounts

1. Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus
accrued interest. U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one
year or less when purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions
they may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on
deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

NJSA 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units.
The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless
such funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan
institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally
insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five
percent of the average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental
Units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public
depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the Governmental units.

2. Investments:

Investments, including deferred compensation and pension funds, are stated at fair value, (quoted market
price or the best available estimate). Interest earned on investments in the Capital Projects Fund is
recognized as a reserve to pay future debt service or transferred to the general fund.

3. Inventories:

Inventories in the general fund consist of expendable supplies held for the District’'s use and are carried at
cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories in the enterprise fund are valued at cost, which

approximates market, using the first-in, first —out method. As of June 30, 2024, the District did not have
inventory in the general fund and had the following inventory in the enterprise fund:
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Food $ 16,965.16
Supplies 1,131.60
$ 18,096.76

The value of Federal donated commodities is the difference between market value and cost of the
commodities at the date of purchase and has been included as an item of non-operating revenue in the
financial statements. The value of commodities included in the food inventory on June 30, 2024 is
$14,510.26. In addition, the Back Porch Café had inventory on hand, valued at $3,200.00, at June 30,
2024

4. Capital Assets:

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $2,000 or more are reported at historical
cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 20-50 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Improvements 10-20 years
Infrastructure Assets 50-65 years

Infrastructure assets include roads, parking lots, underground pipe, etc. The District includes all
infrastructure assets as depreciable assets in the financial statements.

5. Revenues:

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. The Districts primary source of revenue is a
line item appropriation in the annual County of Cape May budget. The District records the entire
approved appropriation as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the revenue is both
measurable and available. Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or
current operations, are reported as non-operating revenue. In respect to grant revenues, the provider
recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenue when the
applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements are met. Resources transmitted before the
eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and unearned revenue by the
recipient. Program revenues, including tuition revenue are reported as reductions to expenses in the
statement of activities.

6. Expenditures:

Expenses are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the
period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

7. Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick
leave, and sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already
rendered, and that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District and its
employees, is accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that
relate to future services, or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the District
and its employees, are accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such
events take place.
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In governmental and similar trust funds, compensated absences that are expected to be liquidated with
expendable available financial resources are reported as both an expenditure and a fund liability in the
fund that will pay for the compensated absences. The remainder of the compensated absences liability is
reported in the District-wide Financial Statements as a Governmental Activity.

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an expense and liability of
the fund that will pay for them.

8. Interfund Activity:

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported
as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation.
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related costs as reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

9. Budgets/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general and special revenue
funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office for approval and then to the Board of School
Estimates for approval. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for
the special revenue fund as described later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line
item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of
detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6:23-2(g).
Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year
and are subject to two-thirds majority vote by the School Board and under certain circumstances require
approval by the County Superintendent of Schools.

Significant transfers approved by the Board of Education during the fiscal year were as follows:

Special Education - Instruction
Multiple Disabilities

Other Salaries for Instruction 94,617.03
Autism
Salaries of Teachers (207,735.00)

Capital Outlay
Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Construction Services 128,030.00

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device
during the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis
of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated
revenue recognition of the last state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue
fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary
integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary
basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary
basis recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the
GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of
GAARP basis financial reports.
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10. Tuition Receivable:

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined. The final cost is based on a
determination by the State of New Jersey Department of Education pursuant to the provisions of NJAC
6A:23-17.1.

11. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those results.

12. Allocation of Costs:

In the government-wide statement of activities, the District has allocated unallocated benefits to various
programs based on the budgetary expenditures by program.

13. Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and Public Employee Retirement System (PERS) and
additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by the TPAF and PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments
are reported at fair value.

F. Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Effective

In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 100,
“Accounting Changes and Error Corrections (an amendment of GASB Statement No. 62)”. This
statement, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023, may have an effect on the
District’s financial reporting.

In June 2022, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 101,
“Compensated Absences”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2023, may have an effect on the District’s financial reporting.

In December 2023, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 102,
“Certain Risk Disclosures”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2024, and reporting periods thereafter, may have an effect on the District’s financial reporting.

In April 2024, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 103,
“Financial Reporting Model Improvements”. This statement, which is effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2025, and reporting periods thereafter, may have an effect on the District’s financial
reporting.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
As of June 30, 2024, the District had no investments.
Interest Rate Risk — the District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment

maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
However, New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits the length of time for most investments to 397 days.
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Credit Risk — New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits District investments to those specified in the
Statutes. The type of allowable investments are Bonds of the United States of America or of the District
or the local units in which the District is located, obligations of Federal agencies not exceeding 397 days,
government money market mutual funds, the State of New Jersey Cash Management Plan, local
government investment pools, or repurchase of fully collateralized securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk — the District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any
one issuer.

Custodial Credit Risk Related to Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank
failure, the School District’s deposits might not be recovered. Although the School District does not have
a formal policy regarding custodial credit risk, N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et seq. requires that governmental units
shall deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. Of the School District’'s bank balance of $12,787,564.14 of
June 30, 2024, $160,329.49 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by Board of Education by the inclusion of $1.00 on October 17,
2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The
capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district's approved
Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a district may
increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the general fund budget certified for
taxes. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the Board of
School Estimates has been obtained. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-5.1(d) 7, the balance in the account
cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2023 $ 1,679,820.90
Increased by:
Interest earned 2,000.00
Transfer by Board Resolution 400,000.00

Decreased by:
Board approved Withdrawal -
Ending balance, June 30, 2024 $ 2,081,820.90

The June 30, 2024 LRFP balance of local support costs of uncompleted capital projects at June 30, 2024
is greater than $1,679,820.90.

NOTE 4 —- MAINTENANCE RESERVE
A maintenance reserve account was established by the Board for the accumulation of funds for use as

required maintenance expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The maintenance reserve account is
maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.
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The activity of the maintenance reserve for the fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2023 $ 950,225.00
Increased by:

Interest earned 2,000.00

Transfer by Board Resolution 350,000.00
Decreased by:

Budgeted Withdrawal (381,024.00)
Ending balance, June 30, 2024 $ 921,201.00

NOTE 5 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2024, consisted of accounts (tuition and miscellaneous), accrued interest,
interfund, intergovernmental, and property taxes. All receivables are considered collectible in full. A
summary of the principal items of accounts receivable follows:

Governmental Government-wide
Fund Financial Financial
Statements Statements
State Aid $ 26,972.00 26,972.00
Federal Aid - -
Interfunds - -
Other 103,908.73 103,908.73
Total $ 130,880.73 130,880.73

NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, was as follows:

{This space intentionally left blank}
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Governmental activities:

Capital assets that are not being depreciated:

Construction in progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Land Improvements
Building Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment
Licensed Vehicles

Total capital assets being depreciated at
historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Land Improvements
Building Improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and Equipment
Licensed Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated
net of accumulated depreciation
Governmental activity capital assets, net

Business-type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:
Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Enterprise Fund capital assets, net

$

$

$
$

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Instruction:

Special Education Instruction

Other Instruction
Support Services:

Student and Instruction Related
School Administrative Services
Other Administrative Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance

No interest on debt was capitalized during the year.

(CONTINUED)
Beginning Deletions/
Balance Additions Adjustments Ending Balance
- 362,532.15 362,532.15
- 362,532.15 - 362,532.15
98,274.18 42,022.00 (0.44) 140,296.62
1,977,442.00 0.76 1,977,441.24
156,390.00 0.23 156,389.77
3,421,614.80 66,553.79 13,011.42 3,475,157.17
33,536.00 33,536.00
5,687,256.98 108,575.79 13,011.97 5,782,820.80
(21,234.84) (5,697.95) (26,932.79)
(461,365.41) (40,520.66) (501,886.07)
(20,468.00) (2,406.23) (22,874.23)
(1,054,524.24) (200,596.02) (13,011.97) (1,242,108.29)
(17,951.92) (4,191.63) (22,143.55)
(1,575,544.41) (253,412.49) (13,011.97) (1,815,944.93)
4,111,712.57 (144,836.70) - 3,966,875.87
4,111,712.57 217,695.45 - 4,329,408.02
943,207.84 157,432.99 1,100,640.83
(362,826.27) (76,253.61) (439,079.88)
580,381.57 81,179.38 - 661,560.95
$ 109,851.37
12,143.58
52,932.33
10,301.58
17,771.63
50,412.00
$ 253,412.49
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NOTE 7 - GENERAL LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Amounts Due
Balance Issues or Payments or Balance Within
June 30, 2023 Additions Expenditures  June 30, 2024 One Year

Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences $  148,205.27 123,260.98 7,195.79 264,270.46
Subscription Based

IT Arrangements 5,194.02 3,221.08 1,972.94 1,972.93
Lease Liability 1,255,808.99 419,392.36 836,416.63 419,392.36
1,409,208.28 123,260.98 429,809.23 1,102,660.03 421,365.29

Business Type Funds
Compensated Absences 99,572.12 12,473.98 71,744.15 40,301.95

$ 1,508,780.40 135,734.96 501,553.38 1,142,961.98 421,365.29

Compensated absences have been liquidated in the General Fund and the Enterprise Funds.

Lease Payable

The District has commitments to lease the school building annually for $400,000 and certain office
equipment under operating leases that expire in fiscal year 2026. The District entered into a new office
equipment lease during the school year. Total operating lease payments made during the year ended
June 30, 2024 were $419,392.36, which was for rent paid to the County of Cape May for use of the
school building, and payments made on the office equipment. Future minimum lease payments are as
follows:

Year Ending June 30, Principal
2025 $ 419,392.36
2026 415,009.27
2027 1,860.00
2028 155.00
2029

Total future minimum lease payments $ 836,416.63

NOTE 8 — PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans

All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees' Retirement System, the
Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program which have been
established by state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits
(Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code, all obligations of the Systems will
be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems terminate. The Division issues a publicly
available financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information
for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. These
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reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New
Jersey, 08625 or the reports can be accessed on the internet at:
http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/omb/publications/21fr/NJFRFY2021Complete.pdf

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical benefits to certain qualified
members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost sharing multiple employer plan
with a special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the State
of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system's other related non-contributing employers.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by
the State Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are
unclassified, professional and certified.

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical benefits to certain
qualified members. The Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost sharing, multiple employer plan.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any
county, municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a
member of another state administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP)

The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established as of July 1, 2008 under the
provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2008 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 (N.J.S.A. 43:15C-1 et seq.). The DCRP
is a cost sharing multiple employer defined contribution pension fund. The DCRP provides eligible
members, and their beneficiaries with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit, along with
life insurance and disability coverage. Vesting and benefit provisions are established by N. J.S.A. 43:15C-
1 et. seq.

Funding Policy

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A, Chapter 62, P.L. of 1994, Chapter 115, P.L. of 1997 and
N.J.S.A. 18:66, and requires contributions by active members and contributing employers. Plan member
and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. TPAF and PERS
provide for employee contributions of 5.5% of employees’ annual compensation, as defined. Employers
are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both TPAF and PERS. The current TPAF
rate is 7.5% and the PERS rate is 7.5% of covered payroll. The School District’'s contributions to TPAF
for the years ending June 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022 were $2,094,325.00, $1,893,618.00, and $2,069,517,
respectively, and paid by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the Board, equal to the required
contributions for each year. The School District’s contributions to PERS for the years ending June 30,
2024, 2023 and 2022 were $455,886.42, $411,956.00, and $417,367.72, respectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024, 2023 and 2022, the State of New Jersey contributed
$569,999.00, $497,449.00, and $483,523, respectively, to the TPAF for post-retirement medical benefits
on behalf of the Board. During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024, the State of New Jersey contributed
$1,577 to the TPAF for long-term disability insurance. Also, in accordance with NJSA 18A:66-66 the
State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $438,743.41, $399,549.10, and $392,483.58, during the same
fiscal years for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on
their base salaries. These amounts, which are not required to be budgeted, have been included in the
financial statements, and the combining and individual fund and account group statements and schedules
as revenues and expenditures in accordance in GASB standards.
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For the DCRP, members contribute at a uniform rate of 5.5% of their base salary. Employers are required
to contribute at a set rate of 3.0% of base salary. There were no employees enrolled in the DCRP for the
year ended June 30, 2023.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions

The vesting and benefit provisions for PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and 43.3B and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C
for TPAF. All benefits vest after eight to ten years of service, except for medical benefits that vest after 25
years of service. Retirement benefits for age and service are available at age 60 and are generally
determined to be 1/60 of the final average salary for each year of service credit, as defined. Final
average salary equals the average salary for the final three years of service prior to retirement (or highest
three years' compensation if other than the final three years). Members may seek early retirement after
achieving 25 years of service credit or they may elect deferred retirement after achieving eight to ten
years of service in which case benefits would begin the first day of the month after the member attains
normal retirement age. The TPAF and PERS provides for specified medical benefits for members who
retire after achieving 25 years of qualified service, as defined, or under the disability provisions of the
System. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three years of service
credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In the case of death before
retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members' accounts.

Significant Legislation

Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, effective June 28, 2011 made various changes to the manner in which the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) and the Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) operate
and to the benefit provisions of those systems.

Chapter 78’s provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include:

¢ New members of the PERS and TPAF hired on or after June 28, 2011 (Tier 5 members) will need
30 years of creditable service and age 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a
reduction of ¥4 of 1% for each month that the member is under age 65.

e The eligibility age to qualify for a service retirement in the systems is increased from age 63 to 65
for Tier 5 members.

¢ Increases in active member contribution rates. PERS active member rates increase from 5.5% of
annual compensation to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7 years. For fiscal year
2013, the member contribution rates increased in October 2012. The phase-in of the additional
incremental member contribution rates for PERS members will take place in July of each
subsequent fiscal year.

e The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) additional increases to current and
future retirees and beneficiaries is suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

o New employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer-provided health benefit
coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage.
The rate of contribution is determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected
level of coverage. The increased employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period
for those employed prior to Chapter 78’s effective date with a minimum contribution required to be
at least 1.5% of salary.

e In addition, this new legislation changes the method for amortizing the pension systems’
unfunded accrued liability (from a level percent of pay method to a level dollar of pay).

Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, made a number of changes to the State-administered
retirement systems concerning eligibility, the retirement allowance formula, the definition of
compensation, the positions eligible for service credit, the non-forfeitable right to a pension, the
prosecutor’s part of the PERS, and employer contributions to the retirement systems.
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Also, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010 changed the membership eligibility criteria for new members of PERS and
TPAF from the amount of annual compensation to the number of hours worked weekly. Also, it returned
the benefit multiplier for new members of PERS and TPAF to 1/60" from 1/55", and it provided that new
members of PERS and TPAF have the retirement allowance calculated using the average annual
compensation for the last five years of service instead of the last three years of service. New members of
PERS and TPAF will no longer receive pension service credit from more than one employer. Pension
service credit will be earned for the highest paid position only. The law also requires the State to make its
full pension contribution, defined as 1/7™" of the required amount, beginning in fiscal years 2012.

Chapter 3, P.L. 2010, effective May 21, 2010, replaced the accidental and ordinary disability retirement
for new members of the PERS and TPAF with disability insurance coverage similar to that provided by the
State to individuals enrolled in the State’s Defined Contribution Retirement Program.

Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 implemented certain recommendations contained in the December 1, 2006 report
of the Joint Legislative Committee on Public Employee Benefits Reform; established a DCRP for elected
and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007; the new pension loan interest rate became 4.69%
per year, and an $8.00 processing fee per loan was charged, effective January 1, 2008. The legislation
also removed language from existing law that permits the State Treasurer to reduce employer pension
contributions needed to fund the Funds and Systems when excess assets are available.

NOTE 9 - PENSION LIABILITIES — PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

In 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued GASB Statement 68. This statement is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014. This statement changes the method of reporting
the District’s pension liabilities. The following information describes the District's proportionate share of
the statewide pension system'’s liabilities and expenses.

The following represents the District’'s pension liabilities as June 30, 2023:
Public Employees’ Retirement System

The District has a liability of $5,093,378 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022 that was
rolled forward to June 30, 2023. The District’'s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2023, the
District’'s proportion is 0.03516464010%, which is an increase of 7.64% from its proportion measured
as of June 30, 2022.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized negative pension expense of ($155,436).
At June 30, 2023, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected & actual experience $ 48,699 (20,820)
Changes of assumptions 11,189 (308,681)
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 23,456 (656,540)
Changes in proportion 563,831
Total $ 647,175  $ (986,041)
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Amounts that would be reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions would be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ended
June 30,
2025 $ 492,764
2026 (77,618)
2027 (624,607)
2028 (116,806)
2029 (12,600)
Total $ (338,866)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2023 measurement date was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of July 1, 2022, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023. This actuarial valuation used the
following assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation rate

Price 2.75%

Wage 3.25%
Salary increases: 2.75% — 6.55% (based on years of service)
Investment rate of return: 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee
mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4%
adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement rates used to value disable retirees were based on
the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and
117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on generational
basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2023) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division
of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long
term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2023 are summarized in the
following table:
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Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
US equity 28.00% 8.98%
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 12.75% 9.22%
International small cap equity 1.25% 9.22%
Emerging markets equity 5.50% 11.13%
Private equity 13.00% 12.50%
Real estate 8.00% 8.58%
Real assets 3.00% 8.40%
High yield 4.50% 6.97%
Private Credit 8.00% 9.20%
Investment grade credit 7.00% 5.19%
Cash equivalents 2.00% 3.31%
U.S. Treasuries 4.00% 3.31%
Risk mitigation strategies 3.00% 6.21%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2023. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will
be made based on 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of
actuarially determined contributions for local employers. Based on those assumptions, the plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to all projected benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

The following presents the District’'s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate as disclosed above, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage point higher than the current rate:

1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 6,141,855 5,093,378 4,201,953

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
PERS financial report.

NOTE 10 — PENSION LIABILITIES - TEACHERS’ PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

At June 30, 2023, the District liability for its proportionate share of the net pension liability which is
considered a Special Funding Situation with the State of New Jersey is reported below.
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The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State
of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is
treated as a non-employer contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute
directly to the plan, there is no net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial
statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to the financial statements of the local
participating employers must disclose the portion of the non-employer contributing entities' total
proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating employer. In
addition, each local participating employer must recognize pension expense associated with the employer
as well as revenue in an amount equal to the non-employer contributing entities' total proportionate share
of the collective pension expense associated with the local participating employer.

The amount recognized by the District as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related

State support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the District were as
follows:

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ -

State's proportionate share of the net position liability
associated with the District 23,315,219.00

Total $ 23,315,219.00

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 and the total pension liability to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to the
pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts and the State,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2023, the District’s proportion was 0.00%, which was no change from
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2022.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $572,787 and revenue of
$572,787 for support provided by the State.

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023. This actuarial
valuation used the following assumptions, applied to all period included in the measurement:

Inflation Rate

Price 2.75%

Wage 3.25%
Salary increases 2.75% - 4.25% (based on years of service)
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee
mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females, and with future
improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Medan Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 114.7%
adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety
Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females,
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and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement
is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2022 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at
June 30, 2023) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division
of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long
term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges
of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class included in TPAF’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the
following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return.
US Equity 28.00% 8.98%
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 12.75% 9.22%
International small cap equity 1.25% 9.22%
Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 11.13%
Private Equity 13.00% 12.50%
Real Estate 8.00% 8.58%
Real Assets 3.00% 8.40%
High Yield 4.50% 6.97%
Private Credit 8.00% 9.20%
Investment Grade Credit 7.00% 5.19%
Cash Equivalents 2.00% 3.31%
U.S. Treasuries 4.00% 3.31%
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 6.21%

Discount rate.

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2023. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will
be based on 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State. Based on those
assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments was applied to all projected benefit payments in determining the total pension liability.

{This space intentionally left blank}
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Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate.

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.0% as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.0%) or 1-percentage point
higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1% Current Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase
(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)

District's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ - - -
State's proportionate share of the

net position liability associated

with the District $ 27,492,874.07 23,315,219.00 19,796,640.50

Pension plan fiduciary net position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
TPAF financial report.

Additional Information

Collective balances of the local group at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Deferred outflows of resources $ 2,413,548,676
Deferred inflows of resources (14,741,373,312)
Net pension liability 51,109,961,824

Collective pension expense for the plan for the measurement period ended June 30, 2023 is
$1,255,623,033.

NOTE 11 — OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS
General Information about the OPEB Plan
State Health Benefit State Retired Employees Plan:

Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Obligations in Fiscal Year 2022 the State funded
the various defined benefit pension systems at 108 percent of the full actuarially determined contributions.
Employer contributions to the pension plans are calculated per the requirements of the governing State
statutes using generally accepted actuarial procedures and practices. The actuarial funding method used
to determine the State’s contribution is a matter of State law. Any change to the funding method requires
the approval of the State Legislature and the Governor. The amount the State actually contributes to the
pension plans may differ from the actuarially determined contributions of the pension plans because the
State’s contribution to the pension plans is subject to the appropriation of the State Legislature and
actions by the Governor. GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions,
requires participating employers to recognize their proportionate share of the collective net pension
liability. Under the new statement, the calculation of the pension liability was changed to a more
conservative methodology and each employer was allocated a proportional share of the pension plans’
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net pension liability. The State’s share of the net pension liability, based on a measurement date of June
30, 2021, which is required to be reported on the financial statements, is $75.1 billion. The Fiscal Year
2023 projected aggregate State contribution to the pension plans of $6.8 billion represents 104 percent of
the actuarially determined contributions. The State provides post-retirement medical (PRM) benefits for
certain State and other retired employees meeting the service credit eligibility requirements. In Fiscal
Year 2022, the State paid PRM benefits for 161,238 State and local retirees. The State funds post-
retirement medical benefits on a “pay-as-you-go” basis, which means that the State does not pre-fund, or
otherwise establish a reserve or other pool of assets against the PRM expenses that the State may incur
in future years. For Fiscal Year 2022, the State contributed $1.9 billion to pay for “pay-as-you-go” PRM
benefit costs incurred by covered populations, a slight increase from $1.8 billion in Fiscal Year 2021. The
State has appropriated $2.1 billion in Fiscal Year 2023 as the State’s contribution to fund increases in
prescription drugs and medical claims costs. In accordance with the provisions of GASBE Statement No.
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the State is
required to quantify and disclose its obligations to pay Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) to retired
plan members. This new standard supersedes the previously issued guidance, GASB Statement No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for
Fiscal Year 2018. The State is now required to accrue a liability in all instances where statutory language
names the State as the legal obligor for benefit payments. The Fiscal Year 2022 State OPEB liability to
provide these benefits is $88.9 billion, a decrease of $12.7 billion, or 12.5 percent, from the $101.6 billion
liability recorded in Fiscal Year 2021. Additional information on Pensions and OPEB can be accessed on
the Division of Pensions & Benefits Financial Reports webpage:
https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtml.

Total OPEB Liability

The State, a non-employer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make
employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The LEA’s
proportionate share percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No.
75 is zero percent. Accordingly, the LEA did not recognize any portion of the collective net OPEB liability
on the Statement of Net Position. Accordingly, the following OPEB liability note information is reported at
the State’s level and is not specific to the board of education/board of trustees. Note that actual numbers
will be published in June 30, 2023 111-3.8 the NJ State ACFR on the Office of Management and Budget's
Financial Publications webpage: NJ OMB - Financial Publications

Actuarial assumptions and other imputes. The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2023, actuarial
valuation reported by the State in the State’s most recently issued ACFR was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2022, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2023. The actuarial assumptions
vary for each plan member depending on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial
valuation used the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Salary Increases

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS
2.75% to 4.25% 2.75% to 6.55% 3.25% to 16.25%
based on senice years based on senice years based on senice years
Mortality Rates

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP), “General”
(PERS), and “Safety” (PFRS) classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021. Postretirement mortality
rates were based on the Pub-2010 “General” classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021. Disability
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mortality was based on the Pub-2010 “General’ classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table
with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021 for
current disabled retirees. Future disabled retirees was based on the Pub-2020 “Safety” (PFRS),
“General” (PERS), and “Teachers” (TPAF/ABP) classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table
with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation were based on the results of the TPAF,
PERS, and PFRS experience studies for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

100% of active members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement.
Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 6.5% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term
trend rate after nine years. For post-65 medical benefits PPO, the trend is increasing to 14.8% in fiscal
year 2026, and decreases to 4.5% in fiscal year 2033. For HMO the trend is increasing to 17.4% in fiscal
year 2026, and decreases to 4.5% in fiscal year 2033. For prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate
is 9.5% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.65%. This represents the municipal
bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond
Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or
higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the
calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability reported by the State of New Jersey

Balance at 6/30/23 (Based on 6/30/2022 measurement date) $ 50,646,262,966.00

Changes for the year:
Service cost 2,136,235,476.00
Interest 1,844,113,951.00
Changes in Benefit Terms -
Differences between Expected & Actual Experiences (980,424,863.00)
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 105,539,463.00
Contributions: Member 47,258,104.00
Benefit payments (1,437,516,858.00)
Net changes 1,715,205,273.00

Balance at 6/30/23 (Based on 6/30/2022 measurement date) $ 52,361,468,239.00

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability as of June 20, 2023, respectively, calculated using a
discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the
current discount rate:
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(2.65%) (3.65%) (4.65%)

F

Total OPEB Liability ~$  61,385,066,712.00 $  52,361,668,239.00 $§  45,116,926,835.00
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Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2023, calculated using the healthcare trend
rate as disclosed above as well as what the total OPEB liabilit3 would be if it were calculated using
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the
current healthcare cost trend rates:
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase

Total OPEB Liability
(School Retirees) $  43,468,257,358.00 $  52,361,668,239.00 $ 63,998,719,320.00

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the board of education recognized OPEB expense of $(1,134,642)
determined by the State as the total OPEB liability for benefits provided through a defined OPEB plan that
is not administered through a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75 and in which there is
a special funding situation.

In accordance with GASB 75, the board of education’s proportionate share of school retirees OPEB is
zero, there is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate share of deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources. At June 30, 2023, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to retired school employees’ OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 7,639,717,639.00 $ (13,791,541,217.00)
Changes in assumptions 7,445,895,322.00 (14,449,948,556.00)

$ 15,085,612,961.00 $ (28,241,489,773.00)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retired
school employees’ OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended

June 30,
2024 $ (2,611,225,301.00)
2025 (2,611,225,301.00)
2026 (2,269,523,460.00)
2027 (1,338,024,839.00)
2028 (273,877,609.00)

Thereafter (4,052,000,302.00)

$ (13,155,876,812.00)

(Contributions made after June 30 are reported as deferred outflow of resources but are not amortized in
the expense.)

Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued OPEB
financial report.
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NOTE 12 - COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick leave) as required by GASB
standards. A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as
employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the
District’s personnel policy and negotiated contracts. Upon termination, employees are paid for accrued
vacation. The District’s policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the
full amount to subsequent years. Upon retirement, employees are paid by the District for unused sick
leave in accordance with the District's negotiated contracts with administrators and various employee
unions.

In the District-Wide Statement of Net Assets, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one
year should be reported in two components — the amount due within one year and the amount due in
more than one year.

NOTE 13 — DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permit
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not
available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan
administrators are as follows:

TPAF Tax Shelters

MetLife

Thomas Seely Agency, Inc.
Lincoln Tax Shelters
Travelers Tax Shelters
Siracusa Tax Shelters
Safeco Tax Shelters

NOTE 14 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property,
liability and surety bonds.

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The District has elected to fund its New Jersey
Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan,
the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts
due to the State.

The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State
for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District's expendable trust fund for the current and prior
year:
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Fiscal District Employee Amount Ending
Year Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2023-2024 $ 32,415.42 32,415.42 315,750.00
2022-2023 - 27,251.62 27,251.62 315,750.00
2021-2022 35,000.00 21,271.85 21,271.85 315,750.00

NOTE 15— CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Federal and State Grants

The District participates in a number of federal and state grant programs. The grant programs are subject
to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The District is potentially liable for
expenditures which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not
aware of any material items of noncompliance would result in the disallowance of program expenditures.

NOTE 16 — ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The District receives support from federal government and from the state governments through local
school districts. A significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, would have an effect
on the District’s programs and activities.

NOTE 17 — FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund — Of the $4,784,974.65 General Fund fund balance, at June 30, 2024, $31,603.73 is
reserved for encumbrances; $921,201.00 is reserved as Maintenance Reserve in accordance with the
Educational Facilities Construction and Financing Act (EFCFA) (N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-9) as amended by P.L.
2004, c. 73 (S1701), $2,081,820.90 has been reserved in the Capital Reserve Account; $315,750.00 is
reserved for Unemployment Compensation; $400,000.00 has been appropriated and included as
anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2025; and $1,034,599.02 is classified as Unassigned.

NOTE 18 — CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:46-31, an undesignated fund balance of 10 percent of the general fund
budget may be maintained. The New Jersey Department of Education calculates the District's excess
surplus using audited information and subsequently adjusts tuition rates and the cost per pupil for these
calculations.

NOTE 19 — RIGHT TO USE ASSETS

The school district has recorded right to use lease assets as a result of implementing GASB 87. The right
to use assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial measurement of the related lease
liability, plus any lease payments made prior to the lease term, less lease incentives, and plus ancillary
charges necessary to place the lease into service. The district has determined the other charges and
amortization to be immaterial to the government-wide financial statements and has elected to record the
Right to Use Assets at their remaining liability payments.

The district has recorded two right to use leased assets. The assets are right to use assets for leased
copiers and the building. The related leases are discussed in Note 7.
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Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Copiers $ 55,808.99 19,392.36 36,416.63
Building 1,200,000.00 400,000.00 800,000.00
Right to use assets, net $ 1,255,808.99 - 419,392.36 836,416.63

NOTE 20 — SUBSCRIPTION-BASED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY ARRANGEMENTS

The District has entered into Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (SBITAS)

involving:
. Education Software
. Various desktop and server software subscriptions

The total of the District’'s subscription assets are recorded at a cost of $6,533.50, less accumulated
amortization of $1,339.48.

The future subscription payments under SBITA agreements are as follows:

Subscriptions

Principal Interest Total
" 2025 $ 1,972.93 1,972.93
"2026 - -
" 2027 - -
72028 - -
72029 -
$ 1,972.93 - 1,972.93

NOTE 21 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred from June 30, 2024,
through October 18, 2024, the date that the financial statements were available to be issued for possible

disclosure and recognition in the financial statements.

54



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I



{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES



{THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]}



£9'v28°'1/G'E £9°'GE6'89¢'91 00 LLLLBLCL 00 LLLLBLCL
(O'vLy'EE) 96°G8S‘LS 00°000'G8 00°000'S8
(Yo'vLy'ee) 96°G8S‘LS 00°000'G8 00°000'S8
Ly vv9'v0L ‘S Ly vv9'v0L ‘S - -
Ly Ev.'8EY LY’ Ev.'8EY - -
00°2.5°L 00°2.5'L - -
00'666'695 00'666'695 - -
00°GZE'¥60°'C 00°GZE'¥60'C - -
9Z 65905 92'G0.ZLZ'ElL 001119021 0011190221
¥0'816'9 ¥0'816°L2 00°000'GL 00°000'GL
ASWAS A TA z6°29v'8/L 00°000°€S 00°000°€S
(00°000°2) - 00°000°C 000002
(00°000'2) - 00°000°C 000002
0L LE6'EY 0L°L€6°LLS 00°000°82S 00°000°82S
00'282'v€€ 00°€66'70€'8 00 L1L2'0/6°L 00 L1L2'0/6°L
- 00°00%'SEL'Y 00°00%'SEL'Y 00°00¥'SEL'Y $
|enjoy 01 |enjoy 196png |eul4 slajsuel| 196png
1obpng |eui 196png leulbQo
(48nQ)/18pUN

YlIM aouelLBA

(Repy ades jo A3uno9y ayj jo yun Jusuodwon y)

¥20¢ ‘0€ dunf papu3l Jea)p
a|npayosg uosriedwon Aieyabpng

pund |eJsuan

sanuaAay |e10 |
$90IN0S |elopa 10|
INTS/VHO4d
weibold aoue)sissy [eoIpaly
:$90IN0g [eJapa4

$92IN0S 9)e1S |e10 |
(peyebpng-uou)
suonnquiuo) AIIN0aSg [B190S 4y dl pasinquiay
(pe1ebpng-uou)
aoueINsuU| AIoNquUIU0D-UON 4Vd1 Heyaq-uQ
(pe1ebpng-uou)
suonnquiuog Juswalnellsod 4vdl jeysq-ug
(pe1ebpng-uou)
suonnquiuogd uoisuad - 4vdl Jeysq-uQ
:$90JN0S 91e1S

$82IN0S |e207 [BJo |
snoaue||aosI Jayl0
sjisoda uo paule] }salalu|
OAI9SaY 90UBUBUIBI\ UO pauled 1salau|
aAlasay [eyden uo pauled 1salau|
S99 JUBpPISaY-UON
Sy woJlj uoning
uonendoisddy way| aui] Auno)

:§92JN0SG |20
‘SINN3IAIY

S3JIAYITS TVIOAdS ¥O0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVI

55



1628621 G6°989'6L0°C 26'699°2£0°C 26°180°8L1 00'885'658°L sailliqesiq a|dnin|A [ejoL
090 L£°601°Gy 16'601°Gy 16'609°G 00°00S°62 s303lq0 48U10
20°LS€°L Q' LLY'L 8089.°C (z6'1€2) 00°000°¢ S300QiXa L
8G'vle Zr'v.8°8¢ 00'680°6€ 006819 00°006°C€ sa||ddng [eJousD

- - - - - (seles 00G-001) S@2IAI8g paseyolnd Jayi0o
- - - - - S82IAI8G [BUONEONPT - [BUOISSBJ0Id paseydind

GL'¥SC'SL 82'8¥2'G.LS €0°€05°06S €0°L1L9'V6 00°988°S61 uonodnasul 1o} selees 19ylo
209SL°L Z8°EY0'6SE’L ¥8°661°09¢’L ¥8°,68°19 00°20€'862°L Slsyoes] JO ssliejeg
sallliqesiq a(dnny
05°GEL'8C 00°29¥'808 0G6°265°9¢8 (00°926'62) 05°€25C16 Saijjigesiq |esolAeyag [ejo]
662 10266°C 00°000°¢ - 00°000°¢ $)09[q0 Joylo
L2°60L°L €L°66L°L 00'60€C (00°169) 00°000°¢ S)00qiXa L
86'vv 20 0v8'vL 00'688'vl 00'S80°L 00°008°€lL sol|ddng [eJeus9
00°0S¥‘9 00°006°L} 00°0S€'vC (00°059) 00°000°s2 (saues 00S-00%) S82IAIBS paseydInd JBYl0
1090202 €¥'169°282 0G°,68°20¢ (00" LLL'¥b) 06°800°LvE uonon.su Joj seuejeg Isyio
6lLL1€E 18'8€8'88Y 00'9G1‘68% (00°655°L€) 00°SL2°02S sloyoes] jJo seleeg

swliedw| uonenbay jeuonows
NOILONYLSNI - NOILYONAd3 1vIO3dS
ISN3IdX3 LINIFHHND

:S3UNLIANIIX3
|[enjoy 01 jenjoy 196png |eul4 sJajsuel | 196png
1ebpng Jeuiy 196png [eubuo
(4anQ)/1epun

YlIM aouelLBA

$20Z ‘0€ sunr pspuz Jea)
a|npayss uostiedwon Aieyabpng
pund [ejduag
(Repy ades jo A3uno9g ayj jo yun Jusuodwon y)

S3JIAYITS TVIOAdS ¥0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVI

56



86°9G€9L 1 68°22£'9€0°'G 18619251 (egzvsol) 01°222'€91L'S
00°00S‘S 00°000'8 00°00S‘ElL - 00°00S'ElL
00°00S°S 00°000°8 00°00S‘ElL - 00°00S‘ElL
SYGLLLL Z8°062'88Y GZ'90v'661 (S¥'€2081) 0L°6.¥'21S
12°0€6 €1°€S1'8 00't80'6 (00916°¢) 00°000°€L
AT 69°0£6'22 16°280'7C (62°162) 0L1.8'%2
26°966'8 00'GLL'S ZGLLLLL (8v'8eL se) 00°052'ZS
Zv'og 0¥'1L60'6VY A WXAN:) 4% z8'2Ll1e 00°GS€‘L2Y
GS'LY.'66 10°ZE0°0¥S'Y 29°€11'6€9'Y Z29°0€S°. 00°€¥2'2€9'v
Yy 11€ Z29'620°01L€ 90°/0%'0L€ 90'9%9°/5 00°19225¢2
99'601 ¥€'G62°L 00°G0¥‘L 00°G0¥ 00°000°L
zz°€9 81799501 00°0€9°0L 00°0€9'% 00°000°9
00ZLL 00'882'S. 00°00¥%'S. 00'692'GL 00°LEL'09
9526 05'6.8'22¢ 90'2.6'222 90°Z¥e L€ 00°0£9'S81
¥9'GYZ €S 0G°€58°L0¥'L ¥1°660'GSY'L (9g°122'2S1) 05°0/£209°L
81°G0Y 1171186 G691L2°01L (50°€82°2) 00°00S°ZL
0188 1168182 12°112'82 (€2222) 00°005'82
£6'87.2S 66°0.S'LSY Z6'6LE0LS Zv'696°LS 0S°0S€2St
£h'e 15°182'906 00°582'906 (00°5€2°202) 00°020'vLL L
|enjoy Ol |enjoy mebsm_ leuiq slajsuel | Hmmvsm
18bpng |eul 196png [euibuo
(48nQ)/18pUN

YlIM aouelLBA

(Repy ades jo A3uno9g ayj jo yun Jusuodwon y)

$20¢ ‘0€ aunr papug Jes)

a|npayss uostiedwon Aieyabpng

pung |eJauan)

NOILONHLSNI V101l

uononJsu| - swelbold 99188 AJlunwiwio) [Bjo ]
sauees
uononisu| - swelbold 99188 AJlunwiwo)

uononJsu| - swelboud [euononisu| JayjQ [elol
s309[q0 JaY10
s|eusie\ g soiddng
(seuas 00G-00E) S92IAIS paseyoind
sauees

uononisu| - swelbold jeuononisu] Jayio

NOILONYLSNI - NOILvONAd3 TvIO3dS V101l

suwll|-|In4 - sanljigesIq |ooyosald [ejo L
s109[q0 JaY0
so||ddng |elsuag
uoIjoNJISU| IO} SaleleS Jayi0
sJayoea] Jo sauees

swill-|In4 - senljigesiq |[ooyosaid

wsiny [ejol
SkLle[oPLINTe)
so||ddng [eljouas
(seues 00G-001) S@2IAI8S paseyaind J8yl0
uoIoNJISU| J0} SaLlejes Jayli0
sJayoea] Jo sauejes
wsnny

S3JIAYITS TVIOAdS ¥0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVI

57



98°'€50°LZ $0'LGL'8LS 06°v0Z'6ES (oL°s22'0L) 00°'086'6%5
69 tYe LL'GGL'C 000052 00°00S 000002
6L°€LO°L LZ'9ES VL 00°0GG'Sl 00°0S9°S 00°006'6
- 000012 000012 00°00€ 00°008°L
8G°1GG‘9 Z€'890°L1 06'6L9°LL (01°0068) 00°025'92
- 00°G89°01 00°G89°01 - 00°G89°'0%
09°crLEl 0v'909° Lt 00°0G.'09% (00°GZE8) 00'G20'69%
60°986'€C 6.°GL8'S6Z'L 88°108'662'L 88'Z¥9'C 00'6GL‘/62°L
e 86°GL0‘C 00°09€‘C 00°098 00°00G°}
LL'6v2 69°GL6'LL 00°62Z'‘8lL 0062} 00°00G‘9L
00°06€°€E 00'62Z'6 00°GL9‘CL (00°G8€‘9) 00°000°L2
962 Z£'66G'992°L 88°109'992°L 88'zvi's 00'65L'852°L
6E 7289 8¥'659'692 /8°€8V'9/2 (€1°29€°€) 00'158'6.2
- - - (00°008) 00°00S
9y'Ge 16°90G°LL LETYG 1L 1E°2YS 00°000°ZL
9G°€veE’9 ¥6°9¥0°LE 0S°06E‘SH (05°609°8) 00°000'ZS
L€'y €9°60L‘GLZ 00°LG6G‘GLZ 00°00Z°‘G 00'LGEe‘0LZ
|enjoy 01 |enjoy 196png |eul4 slajsuel| 196png
1obpng |eui 196png leulbQo
(4anQ)/1epun

YlIM aouelLBA

(Repy ades jo A3uno9g ayj jo yun Jusuodwon y)

$20¢ ‘0€ aunr papug Jes)

a|npayss uostiedwon Aieyabpng

pung |eJauan)

58

swes | Apnig pliyD-sainyipuadx3 peinquisipun [ejoL
$109[q0 18Y10
s|eusie\ g soiddng
(seues 00G-001) S@2IAI8S paseyaind Jayl0
S9JIAISS [BOIUYDD| pUEB |BUOISSDJ0Id pPaseyoind
sauees Jaylo
SJUB]SISSY [BOLI9|D PUE |BLR}SII9S JO salees
1eIS [BU0ISSBJ01d JaYlQ JO salejes

swea] Apnig pIyo - sainyipuadx3 pajnquisipun

S92INIS paje|ay pue

1d ‘10 ‘yosads - sainyipuadx3 pajnquisipun [ejoL
s109[q0 JaY10
s|leusle|\ g soiddng
S92IAI9S UOIEoNpT - [BUOISSSJ0Id paseyaind
1e1S [euoissajold JaylQ Jo salejes

S90INISS pale|oy

pue 1d ‘10 ‘yoeads - saunjipuadx3 painguisipun

S92IAI9S U}eaH - salnypuadx3 pajnquisipun [BloL
$109[q0 JaY10
s|eusie\ g soiddng
(seuas 00S5-001) S@2IAIBS paseyoind
S92IAISS [BOIUYDD| pPUB |[BUOISSDJ0Id Paseyoind
sauees
S82IAI8S Y)eaH - sainjipuadx3 pajnquisipun
S3UNLIANIdX3 d3LNgidLsIiaNn

S3JIAYITS TVIOAdS ¥0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVI



88°00.61 GS'/6Y'2SE £v'861°2.E (15°€.€'Y) 00'2.5'9.¢
056921 05°086'9 000528 (00°052) 00°000'6
ZL'€56 JAWAWNS) 69°G99°/ (1ev€8) 000058
69°¢ LE'10L°C 00'60.C 00°S0L 00000
0099 00'vES'Y 00°009'Y (00°001) 00°00L'¥
96°0 ¥0°008°L¥ 00°L08‘LY 00°L0L 00°00LL¥
- LEYEL0S LEYEL0S LEE] 00°00€'61
00°G09°E€ 00°G¥8‘El 00°0St'LL - 00°0S¥'LL
00°000‘€ - 00°000‘€ (00°000°2) 00°000°S
- 00°009°LL 00°009°LL (00°00t°2) 00°000°02
00068 00°0L0‘9OL 00°006'8lL - 00°0068lL
19216, Z9'6.LL'261 €¥°260'002 €Y'0L 00'220'002
¥0°G80°'C 96'¥90'GS 00°0GL‘/LG 00°00L‘C 00°0S0°GS
- 226GV 226Gy 22°€60°C 00005
92'826 ¥27120'0S 00°000°LS 00°0St'C 00°0SG'8Y
8/°9GL°L 00°00¥ 8/°955°L (Zzevv'2) 00°000‘%
19'8GG°C €€ v67'6G 00°€G0‘€9 - 00°€G0‘€9
10v¥9°C £6°'829'v 00°€.2'.L (00°22¢) 0070092
- 00°2zZ€'6l 00°2Z€'6l 00°22¢€ 00°000°'61
09'tL6 0v'8€G°GE 00°€GY'9E - 00°€G¥'9€
|enjoy 01 |enjoy 196png |eul4 slajsuel| 196png
1obpng |eui 196png leulbQo
(18nQ)1epuUNn

YlIM aouelLBA

$20¢ ‘0€ aunr papug Jes)

a|npayss uostiedwon Aieyabpng
pund [ejduag
(Repy ades jo A3uno9g ayj jo yun Jusuodwon y)

UOoIBJ]SIUIWPY |BJBUSY) - SBJIAISS
uoddng - sainjipuadx3 pajnquisipun |ejoL
sa94 pue sanq diysiequay 309
salnypuadx3 snoaue||aosI\
so1|ddng Bunas|y/Buluiel] asnoH -uj 309
so||ddng [elsuan
(sauds 005-00%) AeS yaind "osIA
auoydasja | /suoneaiunwwon)
S92IAI9S |BUOISSB)0Id pPaseydind Jayl0
saoIn9S Buusauibug/jeinioa)yoly
$894 1pny
S92IAIBS [BbaT
sauees
‘UIWIpY |BJBuds) - ‘AI8S ddng - ‘puadx3 “Isipun

saoIneg Bulules)] pyels

|euonjonJsu] - sainyipuadx3 painguisipun [ejoL
s|eusie| g soiddng
S92IAISS "Ydd | pUB [BUOISSBJ0Id Paseydind JayiQ
S82IAI9S UOIEoNPT - [BUOISSSJ0Id paseydind

‘A9S Bululel] yeis jeuononaisul - “puadx3 “i1sipun

AJeuqgi |00YoS - S8OIAISS BIPSI

[euoneonp3 - sainyipuadx3 pajnquisipun [eloL
s|eusie|\ g soiddng
S92IAISS [BOIUYDD| pPUB |BUOISSDJ0Id pPaseyoind
sauees

Aseiqr 'yos/ MBS BIPSIN "NP3 - “puadxg Isipun

S3JIAYITS TVIOAdS ¥0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVI

59



¥9°19¢'GS LZ'20S'CLE G8'£98'89¢ (G1°255'82) 00'LZv'/6€
882106 ZL'18¥'ZS 00°00S°L9 (00°005°€2) 00°000'G8
22'9.0'9% 8/°028'CS 00°/68'86 (00°00G°9) 00°26€'S0L
¥5'2.2 LE¥61°802 G8'99t'802 GeZYYL 0020202
G/’ 196 gL /vz'ezl £6'80Z'v2l £6°9/G 00°2£9'cCl
29°0€. 8£°69/2°glL 00°00G°61 - 00°00G°61
00'L€Z 00'696'0L 00°00Z°LL - 00°00Z°LL
€10 08'80G°€6 £6'80G°€6 £6'9/G 00'2£6°26
09°0LLZ 0G6'660'252 0L'0LzZ'vse - 0L'0Lz'vse
0¥'9S 09z 00°00€'C - 00'00€'C
oL'6EL L ¥8°0€8'C 00'0.6'¥ (00°0¢) 00°000'S
(A 61°929'G 00°0€9'S 00°0€ 00°009'S
- 00°09¥'€Z 00°09v'€C - 00°09%'€2
€8'LL6 12°8€6'9L2 01088212 - 0L'0s8'2L2
8Z'8Zv'cl 96°//9°'L2Y ¥2°901‘SEY v1°8/6'LL 0S°/2ZL'€ey
Zy L9 85°9Zv'ClL 00'¥90°€lL 00'¥96 00°00L°CL
vy 8L 9G'/¥.1'. 009882 009881 00°000'9
65°1/8 88°109'vvL LY ELY'SYL 16°EYE'6 05'62L°9¢€L
16°02 05'812'8S 1¥'662'8S Y1502 00°8¥2'95
986G/ L1 ¥¥'€29'861 0g€8eoLe (0£°992°2) 00°059°ZLe
|enjoy Ol |enjoy mebzm_ leuiq slajsuel | Hmmvsm
18bpng |eul 196png [euibuo
(48nQ)/18pUN

Ylm aouelep

$20¢ ‘0€ aunr papug Jes)

a|npayss uostiedwon Aieyabpng

pund [ejduag
(Aepy ades jo Ayunod ayjy jo yun Jusuodwo) y)

SIDIAUIS TVIOIAdS ¥0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVD

Soljl[10eH |00YOS 10} 8ouUBUSIUIBIN

paiinbay - sainypuadx3 painqusipun |ejoL
sol|ddng |elsuas)
92IAIBS doueUdUIB) puk Jieday ‘Bujues|)
soueles

"0B4 [00YOS ‘JUIB|\ palinbay - ‘puadx3 “1sipun

ABojouyoa | oju| - sainypuadx3y pajnqLisipun [ejo L
s|elalel g solddng
S82IAISS [BOIUYDIS| pUE |BUOISSBJ0Id Paseydind
salees

ABojouydoa | uonewlou| - sainjipuadx3 pajnguisipun

S92IAIBS |BJIUBYD - SaInypuadx3 pajnqulsipun |eloL
saJinjipuadx3 snoaue|[a9sI
s|eusie\ 9 soiddng
(seuas 00G-00%) S@2IAI8S paseydind Snoaue||dsI\|
S92IAIBS |BOIUYDD] paseydind
saleljes

S90INIBS |BJIUd) - Sainjipuadx3 painquisipun

uoljel}siulWpYy |00YoS - S8dIAI8S

uoddng - sainjipuadx3 pajnquisipun |ejoL
$108(q0 18Y0
s|eusie|\ g solddng
(seuds 00S-00¥) S@21AIBS paseydind Jayl0
SJUBJSISSY |BOLI9|D pUE |ele}aldag Jo sallejes
}JBl1S |euolssajold JoylQ Jo salejes
s|ediould juelsissy/s|ediould Jo salejes

‘ulwpy |ooyas - ‘AI8g “ddng - ‘puadx3 ‘1sipun

60



0.°88%'G91 GL'¥G.'€96°L G8'ZYZ'62L'C (G1°2GG'9¢) 00°008'G91L'C Jueld Jo @oueUBJUIER\ pue suoleladO
wm‘_su_vcmnxm painquasipun |ejol
- 00°€0L ‘001 00°€0L ‘001 (00°228°2) 00°0£6°201 Aunoag - sainypuadx3 penquisipun [ejo L
- 00°€0L‘001 00°€0L‘001 (00°228°2) 00°0€6°201 SOOIAIBS [BOIUYOD ] PUB [BUOISSBJ0Id Paseydind
\ﬁt:omw - .wm::u_vcmaxm_ ‘painguisipun
ov'LL¥'T G8'L¥/.'GE GZ'6GL ‘8¢ GZ'6GLCL 00°000°'92 spunous jo
Qmmv_QD pue ale)d - wm.__d__ucwaxm_ palnglsipun |ejol
0002 GZ'66G°) GZ'6L9°) (52°08¢'2) 00°000‘¥ sal|ddng |esaus)
0¥ L6€C 09'Z¥L've 00°0¥G'9¢ 00°0¥S'vL 0000022 SO0IAIBS douBUB)UIE pue Jleday ‘Bulues|)
spunoig Jo Qmmv_QD pue ale)d - .wmzsu__ucoaxm ‘painguisipun
99'60.'201 60°20¥' VLGl G/9LL'229°'L (5z'zee'zl) 00'6Y'vE9°L S80IAIBS [BIPO}SND
JayjQ - sainyipuadx3 painquisipun [ejoL
YE 9. 99'G¢/ 00°00G°L - 00°00G°L s109[q0 JaY0
zz'829'Le 8/'960'622 00'62.'05¢2 - 00'62.'052 Ayoupos|3
08'€v.'92 0Z'9sL L2l 00°006'L¥7L (00°00€91L) 00°00Z'v9L seo |eJnjeN
ZG'€6G°L €2°298'LY G/'GGY'6Y G/ 'GGY'Y 00°000'SH sal|ddng |esausn)
69°0 LevseLe 0066212 (00°G¥LL) 00°000'€Z @oueINsu|
€0v8.'S 16'G19'CS 00°00%'8S 00°008‘01 00°009'Z¥ seoIneg Apadold peseyoind Jayi0
- 00°000'00% 00°000°'00% - 00°000°'00% sbuiping pue pueT jo |ejusy
82°€16'C 2.'92G'SlL 00°00G°81 00°000't 00°00G'vL 80IAI8S 8ouUBUBUIRI pue dleday ‘Bulues|)
¥8'6LL91L 91°/£.'852 00°/G¥'S/2 (00°€v0°LL) 00°005'98¢2 S9OIAI9G [BDIUYOD | PUE [BUOISSB)0Id paseydind
¥6°L0G'LE 90'zzZY'19¢ 00't26'86€ (00005°2) 00'vZy LoV solleleg
SOJIAISG |eIpoisn) - .wm._::bcoaxm ‘pPajnqguisipun
|enjoy Ol |enjoy mebjm_ leuiq slajsuel | Hmmvsm
1ebpng Jeuiy 1ebpng [euibuQ
(48nQ)/18pUN

YlIM aouelLBA

$20Z ‘0€ sunr pspuz Jea)
a|npayss uostiedwon Aieyabpng
pund [ejduag
(Repy ades jo A3uno9g ayj jo yun Jusuodwon y)

S3JIAYITS TVIOAdS ¥0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVI

61



(01°598°229'2) L1°GSZLLS'9L 10°06€°€E8'EL (€z'212°18) 0£°20L'SLB'EL
(80°222'v6.'2) 82°CE6' VLY LL 02°'0L2089'8 (ov'vLLLL) 09'¥88'1G.'8
(be0zZ¥'ceo's) ¥€°0.7'€91°9 00°0S0°'0€L'E (00°'00%'cE) 00°0S¥'€9lL’e
(LY ¥¥9'v0L E) LY #7901 ‘E - - -
(Lv'evL'8ey) LY'ev. 8Eh - - -
(00°225°1) 00°2.5°L - - -
(00'666'699) 00666695 - - -
(00'52£'v60°2) 00'G2E'¥60°C - - -
10'v22°L. £6°G28'850'€E 00°0S0°0€L‘€E (00°00t'€€) 00°0S¥'€9L‘€E
- 00°000°ZL 00°000°ZL - 00°000°ZL
- Z5°€81'62 Z5°€81'62 Z5°€81°C 00°000°22
08029 L¥'G0L'62 12°92.'62 1292V 00°000'S2
86°1£8'89 LL'/G0'6SEC 606882V (16°095'¥L) 00°0S¥'2hv'e
Z0'69 09°€LB'EZL 29'786'€ZL (8€°210°69) 00°000‘€8L
1220L°L €116/ 00°00S‘2 (00°005°2) 00°000°S
- L' LYy 862 LL'Lyy 862 LU LYP'EZ 00°000'S§.2
- 6€°22€°102 6€°22€°102 6€°22€CL 00°000°681
|enjoy 01 |enjoy 196png |eul4 slajsuel| 196png
1obpng |eui 196png leulbQo
(4anQ)/1epun

YlIM aouelLBA

(Repy ades jo A3uno9g ayj jo yun Jusuodwon y)

¥20¢ ‘0€ dunf papu3z Jea)p
a|npayss uostiedwon Aieyabpng
pund |eiauag

ISNIdX3 INFHHND TVHINTO TV1OL

S3UNLIANIdX3 d31LNaidLSIaNN V101

s)yeuag @ahojdwg - S8OIAIBS [BUOSIBd [B10 L

suonnquiuog jleysg-ug lejoL
(pe1ebpng-uou)
suonnquiuo) AIIN0aSg [B190S 4V dl pasinquiay
(pe1ebpng-uou)
aoueInsu| AIoINqUIU0D-UON 4Vd1 Heyaq-uQ
(pe1ebpng-uou)
suonnguiuog Juswainel)sod 4vdl jeysq-up
(pe1ebpng-uou)
suonnquUiuogd uoisuad - 4vdl Heysq-uo
suonnquiuog jleysg-uo

slijsusg pajeoojeun [ejo]
Je1S painay/paleulwla] 0} Juswhed YIS pasnun
sjjeuag aakojdw3 Jayio
JuswiasINquiay uonin|
Slijeusg YilesH
uonesuadwo) S,usuwNIoAA
uonesuadwo) juswAhojdwaun
dd0Q - suoinqiuod juswaliiay J8yio
Sddd - suolnqLiuo) juswallldy Jaylo
uonnguuo) AJNoag [eIooS

slijouag pajeoo|jeun

S3JIAYITS TVIOAdS ¥0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVI

62



(12°251'€68) L2€81'005 00'v/6'Z6E°L - 00'7.6'26€'L
00°000°C - (00°000°2) (00°000°2)
(L2€81) LL'€8L
(00°'%20°1L8€) - 00'%20°18¢ 00'%20°L8¢
(00°056°€LG) - 00°'0S6°CLS 00°0S6°ELS

- 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°000°00S
z8'slLe'ope’lL (8¥°22v'€L9) (0g9v.2'656°L) - (0g9v2'656°L)

(18°505°L£2°2)

L L'€9€'286'91

0€'2G68°0S.'vL

0€°2G68°0S.'vL

62'65E'9FY ¥6°L0L L LY €T /9116 €Z112'18 00°0G.'G€8
00°000°2 - 00°000°2 00°000°2
62 65E T Gl'68L°ChY v'8¥L 188 v°'86£'89 00°05.2'818
68°€09°0EY - 68°€09'0SY (LLovL'88) 00°0G.'81LS
0%°'286'01 GL'2es L GG'716'82 GG'¥16'82 -
00°€22C 00°.G2'SeY 00°0€0'8Z¥ 00°0€0°'821 00°000°00€
- 6.'81£'82 6.'81£'82 6.81E'CL 00°000°'GL
- 6.'81£'82 6.'81€'82 6.8LE'CL 00°000°G1L
|enjoy Ol |enjoy uwmbsm_ leuiq slajsuel | Hombsm
1obpng |eui 196png leulbQo
(48nQ)/18pUN

YlIM aouelLBA

(Repy ades jo A3uno9g ayj jo yun Jusuodwon y)

¥20¢ ‘0€ dunf papu3z Jea)p
a|npayss uostiedwon Aieyabpng
pund |eiauag

:s901n0g Buioueul4 JayiQ [ejol
"quUIUOD pJeog-pun4 99IAI8S P00 O} Jdjsuel |
SNUBASY JBS A JOlid JO uole||@oue)
9SSy SOUBUSUIBI\ UO paule] }salaju|
:INQ sJ19ysuel] BupesadO
saljljiqel Jes A Jold Jo uolje|jeoued
9SSy SOUBUSUIBIA WO} [EMEIDUNAA
aJeyg |e00T - 9AI8SY [eHde) wol) [emeIpUNAA
pun4 asudiajug wo.y Jajsuel |
:u| sJejsuel] Bunesado
:(sesn)/saainog bBuroueul4 Jayj0

63

SIHNLIANIAX3 (Y3ANN)
H3IAO SANNIAIY 40 (ADN3ID143A) SSADXI

S3INLIANIdX3 V10l

AV1LNO TV1IdvO V10l

anlesay [eude) o) yisoda( 1salslu|

'AISS JSU0) pue uonisinboy sanioe |eyol
aJlnjonJiselju|
S9JIAISS |BlNn]jovliydly
SBJIAI8S UO0I3dNJIISU0)D

'AIBS JISU0) pue uonisinboy sanijioe

wewdinbg |ejo|
spunols) jo deaydn pue aied
"BJIXT ¥ pale|oy-seoineg uoddng
s92I1M9S poddng-asuadx3 painguisipun
wewdinbg
AV1LNO TV1IdvO

S3JIAYITS TVIOAdS ¥0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVI



S9v/6'v8.'v
Z0'66S7E0°L
€1°€09°LE
00°000°00%
00°0G.'GLE
00°L0Z°126
06°028°180°'C
LL'LOL'ESH S9'v.6'v8.'Y ZLOvP LEE'Y ZLOvP LEE'Y
- Zv'812'868'v Zv'812'868'v Zv'812'868'v
LLL9L'eGh (22 evz'eLL) (0£°222'99G) (0£°222'99G)
|enjoy 0} |enjoy 1ebpng |euiy 1ebpng
1ebpng Jeuiy [eubuo
(48nQ)/18pUN

YlIM aouelLBA

$20Z ‘0€ sunr pspuz Jea)
a|npayss uostiedwon Aieyabpng
pund [ejduag
(Repy ades jo A3uno9g ayj jo yun Jusuodwon y)

(d¥V9) spun4 |eluswuIsAos) Jad aoueeg pun4
aoueleg pun4 paubisseun
S80UBIQUWINOUT pUS-IBaA
salnypuadx3 sies A
juanbasqgng 1o} 309 Aq pajeubiseq
:90ueleg pund paubissy
aAlasay JuswAoldwaun
9AI9SaY 9oUBUBJUIBI
aAIBSaY |eyde)
:90ueleg pun4 pajouIsay
:uone|nudeocay

0€ aunp aouejeg pun4
L AInp @ouejeg pun4
(sesn) s@ainog BuioueuiH Jayi0

pue sainjipuadx3 (Japun) JOAQ $821n0g BuioueulH
JBYJ0 pue SanuaAay Jo (Aouaioyeq) sseox3

S3JIAYITS TVIOAdS ¥0d STOOHIS ALNNOD AVIN 3dVI

64



CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES

(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)

REVENUES:
Local Sources
Federal Sources
State Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:
Other Salaries for Instruction
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services:
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Other Salaries
Supplies & Materials

Total Support Services

Capital Outlay
Non-Instructional Equipment

Total Capital Outlay

Student Activity
Total Student Activity

Total Outflows

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Recapitulation:
Restricted:

Student Activities

Total Fund Balance

Special Revenue Fund

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ 70,048.18 - 70,048.18 90,787.88 20,739.70
42,602.00 - 42,602.00 42,602.00 -
5,834.00 - 5,834.00 5,834.00 -
118,484.18 - 118,484.18 139,223.88 20,739.70
3,500.00 - 3,500.00 - 3,500.00
10,375.37 - 10,375.37 10,375.37 -
94,203.56 - 94,203.56 88,450.87 5,752.69
108,078.93 - 108,078.93 103,687.74 4,391.19
3,498.00 - 3,498.00 3,206.50 291.50
6,907.25 - 6,907.25 6,907.25 -
10,405.25 - 10,405.25 10,113.75 291.50
16,579.74 (16,579.74)
- - - 16,579.74 (16,579.74)
118,484.18 - 118,484.18 130,381.23 (11,897.05)
$ - - - 8,842.65 8,842.65
8,023.89
16,866.54
16,866.54
16,866.54
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
Required Supplementary Information

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation

Note to RSI

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Note A - Explanation of Differences Between Budgetary Inflows and
Outflows GAAP Revenue and Expenditures

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the
related revenue is recognized

None

Total revenues reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outlfows"
from the budgetary comparison schedule

Difference - budget to GAAP:

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is
placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year the
supplies are received for financial reporting purposes.

None

(C-1]

(B-2]

[C-1]

(B-2]

General
Fund

$ 16,368,935.63

16,368,935.63

16,982,363.11

$ 16,982,363.11

(C-2]

(B-2]

(C-2]

(B-2]

C-3

Special
Revenue
Fund

139,223.88

139,223.88

130,381.23

130,381.23
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SPECIAL SERVICES SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability
Public Employee Retirement System and Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund
Last Eight Fiscal Years

M-1

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
District's proportion of the net OPEB
liability (asset) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
District's proportionate of the net OPEB
liability (asset) $ - - - - - - - -
State's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability (asset) associated with the District 42,217,171.00 40,561,982.00 47,974,075.00 55,625,779.00 35,870,095.00 42,216,380.00 51,473,810.00 55,715,567.00
Total 42,217,171.00 40,561,982.00 47,974,075.00 55,625,779.00 35,870,095.00 42,216,380.00 51,473,810.00 55,715,567.00
District's covered payroll $ 8,856,297.00 8,153,093.00 7,779,005.00 7,732,605.00 7,668,796.00 7,436,009.00 7,836,149.00 8,087,790.00
District's proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage
of its covered-employee payroll 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total OPEB
liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
State's proportionate share of OPEB
associated with the District:
Service Cost 1,314,407.00 1,837,642.00 2,089,620.00 1,063,410.00 1,131,805.00 1,390,583.00 1,668,921
Interest Cost 1,486,837.00 1,074,937.00 1,244,498.00 1,276,381.00 1,657,096.00 1,873,209.00 1,619,209
Change in Benefit Terms - - (51,063.00) - - - -
Differences between Expected & Actual (110,235.00) 1,587,043.00 (10,033,589.00) 8,194,022.00 (8,601,546.00) (6,586,846.00)
Changes in Assumptopns 85,092.00 (10,881,116.00) 47,330.00 10,160,918.00 534,826.00 (4,844,540.00) (6,381,545)
Member Contributions 38,102.00 34,158.00 31,816.00 29,352.00 32,639.00 39,015.00 43,901
Benefit Payments (1,159,014.00) (1,064,757.00) (980,316.00) (968,399.00) (1,101,105.00) (1,128,851.00) (1,192,243)
Change in Total Opeb Liability 1,655,189.00 (7,412,093.00) (7,651,704.00) 19,755,684.00 (6,346,285.00) (9,257,430.00) (4,241,757)
State's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability (asset) associated with the District -
Beginning Balance 40,561,982.00 47,974,075.00 55,625,779.00 35,870,095.00 42,216,380.00 51,473,810.00 55,715,567.00
Ending Balance $  42,217,171.00 40,561,982.00 47,974,075.00 55,625,779.00 35,870,095.00 42,216,380.00 51,473,810.00
State's proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability associated with the District -
as a percentage of its covered-employee
payroll 476.69% 497.50% 616.71% 719.37% 467.74% 567.73% 656.88%

Source: GASB 75 report on State of New Jersey State Health Benefits Program; District records

Note: This schedule is required by GASB 75 to be show information for a 10 year period.

However, information is only currently available for eight years.
Additional years will be presented as they become available.
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES Exhibit J-14
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)

Demographic and Economic Statistics,

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(b)

Fiscal Personal (c)
Year Income Per Capita (d)
Ended (a) (thousands of Personal Unemployment
June 30, Population dollars) Income Rate
2015 94,330 4,914,005,516 52,901 10.9%
2016 93,825 4,892,607,160 54,772 10.9%
2017 93,283 4,977,861,577 57,477 9.1%
2018 92,604 5,131,688,045 60,246 9.1%
2019 92,247 5,830,287,141 63,203 8.4%
2020 91,546 6,210,114,456 67,836 7.2%
2021 95,661 6,888,548,610 72,010 7.5%
2022 95,634 6,846,438,060 71,590 8.9%
2023 94,610 6,773,129,900 71,590 6.5%
2024 94,610 6,773,129,900 71,590 7.6%
Source:
(a) Population information provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development -
information for the period of 4/1/2014 to 7/1/2023
(b) Personal income provided by the NJ Dept of Labor and Workforce Development -
most current information is as of 11/16/2023
(c) Per capital personal income source Regional Economic Information System, Bureau of
Economic Analysis (2012-2021)
(d) Unemployment data provided by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES Exhibit J-20

Insurance Schedule

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

(Unaudited)

Amount of
Company and Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
New Jersey School Boards Association Insurance Group
Package Policy
| Property
Blanket Real & Personal Property - per occurrence 350,000,000 $ 1,000
Blanket Extra Expense 50,000,000 1,000
Blanket Valuable Papers & Records 10,000,000 1,000
Demolition and Increased Cost of Construction 25,000,000
Loss of Business Income/Tuition 1,500,000
Limited Builders Risk 10,000,000
Fire Department Service Charge 10,000
Arson Reward 10,000
Pollutant Cleanup and Removal 250,000
Accounts Receivable 250,000
Flood - per occurrence/NJSBAIG annual aggregate - Zone A & V 25,000,000 500,000
Flood - per occurrence/NJSBAIG annual aggregate - All Other Zones 75,000,000 10,000
Earthquake - per occurrence/NJSBAIG annual aggregate 50,000,000
Increased Cost of Construction/Demolition
Terrorism - per occurrence/NJSAIG annual aggregate 1,000,000
Il Electronic Data Processing
Blanket Hardware/Software 350,000,000 1,000
Terrorism Included
Computer Virus 250,000
Special Flood Hazard Area Flood Deductble, per building contents 500,000
All Other Flood Zones Flood Deductible, per member/per occurrence 10,000
Il Equipment Breakdown
Combined Single Limit per Accident for Property Damage & Expense 100,000,000 25,000
Property Damage Included
Off Premises Property Damage 1,000,000
Business Income Included
Extra Expense 10,000,000
Service Interruption 10,000,000
Perishable Goods 1,000,000
Data Restoration 1,000,000
Contingent Business Income 1,000,000
Demolition 1,000,000
Ordinance or Law 1,000,000
Expediting Expenses 1,000,000
Hazardous Substances 1,000,000
Newly Acquired Locations 1,000,000
Terrorism Included
IV Crime
Public Employee Dishonesty with Faithful Performance 250,000 1,000
Theft, Disappearance and Destruction - Loss of Money and
Securities on or off Premises 100,000 1,000

Forgery or Alteration 250,000 1,000
Computer Fraud 250,000 1,000
Public Officials Bond - Board Secretary/Business Administrator 200,000 500
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES Exhibit J-20
Insurance Schedule
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024
(Unaudited)
Amount of
Company and Type of Coverage Coverage Deductible
V Comprehensive General Liability
Bodily Injury & Property Damage - Combined Single Limit 16,000,000
Premises & Operations
Bodily Injury from Products & Completed Operations - Annual Aggregate 16,000,000
Sexual Abuse - per occurrence 15,000,000
Sexual Abuse - per member annual aggregate 15,000,000
Sexual Abuse - annual NJSIG aggregate 27,000,000
Communicable Disease Outbreak - per occurrence 1,000,000
Communicable Disease Outbreak - annual NJSIG aggregate 9,000,000
Personal Injury & Advertising Injury - Per Occurrence/Annual Aggregate 16,000,000
Employee Benefit Liability - Per Claim/Annual Aggregate 16,000,000 1,000
Premises Medical Payments - Per Accident 10,000
Terrorism - per occurrence 1,000,000
VI Automobile
Liablility
Combined Single Limits for Bodily Injury & Property Damage 16,000,000
Uninsured/Underinsured Mootrists - Private Passenger Autos
Bodily Injury Per Person 25,000
Bodily Injury Per Accident 50,000
Property Damage Per Accident 25,000
Uninsured/Underinsured Mootrists - All Other Vehicles
Bodily Injury Per Person 25,000
Bodily Injury Per Accident 50,000
Property Damage Per Accident 25,000
Personal Injury Protection 250,000
Terrorism 1,000,000
Communicable Disease
Per Occurrence 1,000,000
Annual NJSIG Aggregate 9,000,000
Deductibles -
Comprehensive 1,000
Collision 1,000
Hired Car Physical Damage $110,000 Limit 1,000
Replacement Cost 1,000
Workers Compensation
Bodily Injury by Accident - Per Accident 3,000,000
Bodily Injury by Disease - Per Employee 3,000,000
Bodily Injury by Disease - Agreement Limit 3,000,000
Umbrella Liability
Each Occurrence 10,000,000
Aggregate 10,000,000
Self Insured Retention 10,000
Volunteer Workers
Maximum Amount 500,000
Errors & Omissions
Coverage A
Limit of Liability - Each Policy Period 15,000,000 5,000
Coverage B
Limit of Liability - Each Claim 100,000 5,000
Each Policy Period 300,000
Communicable Disease Outbreak - per occurrence 1,000,000
Communicable Disease Outbreak - annual NJSIG aggregate 9,000,000

Source: District records
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K-1
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND

OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education

Cape May County Schools for Special Services
(a component unit of the County of Cape May)
County of Cape May

Cape May Court House, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office
of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape
May), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the County
of Cape May) basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 18, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Cape May County
Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May) control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of
the County of Cape May) internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cape May County Schools for Special
Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May) financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Fond, Scott & ssociates, L.L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leosw P. (ostello

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 767

October 18, 2024
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON SCHEDULE
OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
REQUIRED BY UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE AWARDS (UNIFORM GUIDANCE),
AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education

Cape May County Schools for Special Services
(a component unit of the County of Cape May)
County of Cape May

Cape May Court House, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal & State Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal & State Program

We have audited the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the County of
Cape May)'s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance
Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the
County of Cape May) major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The Cape May
County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May) major federal and state
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape
May) complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended
June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal & State Program

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS), the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the audit requirements prescribed by the Office of
School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and NJ OMB 15-08. Our responsibilities under those
standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component
unit of the County of Cape May) and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the
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relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on compliance for each major federal and
state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Cape May County Schools
for Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May) compliance with the requirements
referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to its Federal
and State programs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May)
compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, the Uniform Guidance and NJ OMB 15-08 will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting
from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or
in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance
about Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of the County of Cape May)
compliance with the requirements of each major federal or state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o |dentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit
of the County of Cape May)’'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Cape May County Schools for Special Services (a component unit of
the County of Cape May)’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and NJ OMB 15-08, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Stafford Townships School District's
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of nhoncompliance which are required to be
reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance or NJ OMB 15-08.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
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functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’'s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above. However, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that have not been
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance and NJ OMB 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Gord, Scott & s4ssociates, L.L. L.

FORD, SCOTT & ASSOCIATES, L.L.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Leow P. (ootello

Leon P. Costello

Certified Public Accountant
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. 767

October 18, 2024
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Exhibit K-5

Cape May County Schools for Special Services

(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance

June 30, 2024

Note 1: General

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance present the activity of
all federal and state award programs of the Board of Education, Cape May County Schools for Special
Services. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's basic financial statements. All
federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and
state financial assistance passed through other government agencies, is included on the schedule of
federal awards and state financial assistance.

Note 2: Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of awards and financial assistance are presented on the
budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service fund, which
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting, and those recorded in the special revenue fund,
which are presented using the budgetary basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Notes 1(C) and 1(D) to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial
statements

The District has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.
Note 3: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special
revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by
law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year whereas GAAP reporting, revenue is not
recognized until the subsequent year or when the expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is
mandated pursuant to P.L. 2003, ¢.97, (A3521). For GAAP purposes that payment is not recognized until
the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the
subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant
accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last
state aid payment in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-4.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $0.00 for both the General
Fund and Special Revenue Fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and
special revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board's basic
financial statements on a GAAP basis on the following page:
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Cape May County Schools for Special Services

(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance

June 30, 2024

(CONTINUED)

Note 3: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements — Continued

Special
Revenue Food
General Fund Fund Service Fund Total

State Assistance:

Actual amounts

(budgetary) "revenue" from

the Schedule of

Expenditures of State

Financial Assistance $ 3,104,644.41 5,834.00 10,798.81 3,121,277.22

State Aid payment

recognized for GAAP

statements in the current

year, previously recognized

for budgetary purposes. - - - -

State Aid payment

recognized for budgetary

purposes, not recognized

for GAAP statements until

the subsequent year. - - - -

Grant accounting

budgetary basis differs

from GAAP in that

encumbrances are

recognized as

expenditures, and the

related revenue is

recognized. - - - -

Total State revenue as

reported on the statement

of revenues, expenditures,

and changes in fund

balance. $ 3,104,644.41 5,834.00 10,798.81 3,121,277.22
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Cape May County Schools for Special Services

(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
And State Financial Assistance

June 30, 2024

(CONTINUED)

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund

Food
Service
Fund

Total

Federal Assistance

Actual amounts (budgetary)

“revenue” from the Schedule of

Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 51,585.96 42,602.00

Difference — budget to “GAAP”:

Grant accounting budgetary

basis differs from “GAAP” in

that encumbrances are

recognized as expenditures,

and that related revenue is

recognized. - -

191,563.98

285,751.94

Total Federal Revenue as

reported on the statement of

revenue, expenditures, and

changes in fund balance $ 51,585.96 42,602.00

191,563.98

285,751.94

Note 4: Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal

and state financial reports.

Note 5: Other

Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Distribution Program represent current year value
received and current year distributions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension
Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30,
2024. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2024.
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

EXHIBIT K-6

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified Opinion

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? ____ Yes No
2) Significant deficiencies identified?
___ Yes No
Non-compliance material to basic financial
statements noted? ____Yes No
Federal Awards - Not Applicable
Internal Control over major programs:
1) Material weakness(es) identified: Yes No
2) Significant deficiencies identified? Yes No
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Uniform Guidance? Yes No
Identification of major programs:
AL Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
N/A
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes
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EXHIBIT K-6

CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results (Continued)

State Awards

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000.00
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? ___ Yes X No
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified Opinion

Internal Control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
2) Significant deficiencies identified
Yes X None reported
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with NJOMB Circular Letter 15-087 Yes X No
Identification of major programs:
GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program
495-034-5095-003 Reimbursed TPAF Social Security
Contribution

Section Il - Findings Related to the Financial Statements Which are Required to be Reported in
Accordance with Generally Accepted Governmental Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, our audit disclosed no findings relating to the
financial statements that are required to be reported under this section.

Section lll - Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal and State Awards

FEDERAL AWARDS:

None

STATE AWARDS:

None
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CAPE MAY COUNTY SCHOOLS FOR SPECIAL SERVICES
(A Component Unit of the County of Cape May)
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR-YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FEDERAL PROGRAMS

There were no prior year findings.

STATE PROGRAMS

There were no prior year findings.

EXHIBIT K-7
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